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Letter from the Chief 
Financial Officer & Executive 

Director 

 

Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
 

Dear Shareholders,  

I am happy to write this address to you in this 
Annual Report for the Financial Year 2023-24, 
to update you on the progress your Company 
has made in these past 12 months.  

We have used this past year as a year of consolidation, rather than aggressive growth. We 
have focused on leveraging our existing strengths, strengthening existing product lines, and 
focusing on the challenges faced by the company during the year. Amidst all the external 
challenges, your Company has continued its focus on delivering high quality service to our 
clients, and trying to deepen existing relationships rather than new client acquisitions. We 
have completely redrawn our technology framework, with a focus on almost complete 
process automation. We believe this will make the company more agile in facing business 
challenges of the future. We have tried to use AI tools to identify automation opportunities 
in all our service delivery. With this, we have designed a completely new workflow platform 
which combines the best of current technology available, along with robust AI tools. Over a 
period of time, we believe almost all routine processes within the Company will be 
completely automated, and focus will be on using the human resource only for client 
interaction and relationship management. This also means that incremental volumes will 
not directly result in manpower numbers, and hence, as we increase business volumes, 
operating margins will improve substantially.  
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INTRODUCTION 

 

SecUR Credentials Ltd is India’s first and only Listed Background Checks and Screening 
Company. Apart from being one of the leaders in this industry in India, through a network of 
partnerships, we offer global delivery capability for our clients across India, the Middle East, 
and the US. With a team which has a collective experience in the due diligence and 
background screening industry of over 100 years, we bring a mindset of providing solutions 
to our clients. 

We firmly believe that background checks and screening (whether for employees, suppliers 
or partners) is the first line of defense in the risk mitigation strategy of any organization, 
and hence, we are making a meaningful contribution to Elevating the Integrity of India Inc.  
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

NOTICE is hereby given that the 23rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members of Secur 
Credentials Limited will be held on Friday, April 3, 2026 at 11:00 A.M. IST through Video Conferencing 
(“VC”) / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”), to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

1. Adoption of Financial Statements 
 
To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the 
Auditors thereon. 

2. Re-appointment of Director retiring by rotation 
 
To appoint a Director in place of Mr Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar who retires by rotation in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

SPECIAL BUSNIESS: 

3. Appointment of Mr. Bhimsen Vishwanath Pawar as a Whole Time Director: 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an 
ordinary resolution: 

 
“RESOLVED That pursuant to the provisions of section 152 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 
2014 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 [including any statutory modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) 
thereof for the time being in force], and based on the recommendation of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Bhimsen Vishwanath Pawar (DIN: 05357248), being so eligible, be and 
hereby is appointed as a Whole Time Director of the Company to hold the office for a period of five (5) 
years, and shall be liable to retire by rotation. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board or any duly constituted Committee of the Board, be and is hereby 
authorised to do all acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary and/or expedient in 
connection therewith or incidental thereto, to give effect to the foregoing resolution.” 
 

4. Appointment of M/s. JPMD & Associates, as Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual 
vacancy: 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modifications the following resolution as an ordinary 
resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules made thereunder, M/s. JPMD & Associates, Chartered 
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Accountants (Firm Registration No. 133085W), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company to fill the casual vacancy caused due to resignation of M/s. S.D. Mehta & Co., to hold office from 
January 12, 2026, for a period of Five (5) years till the conclusion of the 27th Annual General Meeting of the 
Members of the Company, for such remuneration plus service tax, out-of-pocket, travelling and living 
expenses, etc., as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Auditors. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. JPMD & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration No. 
133085W), be and hereby are appointed as the Statutory Auditor for conducting the statutory audit, 
commencing from the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 till 31st March, 2029 and to conduct the 
Audit of the same. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board hereby takes note of the written consent and eligibility certificate 
furnished by M/s. JPMD & Associates pursuant to Section 139(1) and Section 141 of the Companies Act, 
2013. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all 
such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.” 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Secur Credentials Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
Director 
DIN: 03584695 
 
Date: March 12, 2026 
Place: Mumbai  
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NOTES 

1. The relative explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), 
setting out material facts concerning the business under Item Nos. 3 & 4 set out above and details 
under Regulations 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), in respect of the Director 
seeking appointment/re-appointment at the AGM are annexed hereto. 
 

2. Since 23rd AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical 
attendance of Members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of 
proxies by the Members will not be available for the 23rd AGM and hence the Proxy Form and 
Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.. 

 
3. In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norms to be followed and 

pursuant to General Circular No 09/2023 dated 25th September, 2023, General Circular No. 11/2022 
dated 28th December, 2022 and other applicable circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA), Government of India and SEBI and in compliance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 
2015 permitted holding of Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video conferencing (VC) 
or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) without physical presence of members at a common venue. 
In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and MCA 
Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being held through VC/OAVM. Hence, Members can attend 
and participate in the ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM. The deemed venue for the Fortieth AGM 
shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 
 

4. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circulars the Notice of the 23rd AGM along 
with the Annual Report for the year 2023-24 are being sent only through electronic mode to those 
Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may 
further note that the said documents will also be available on the Company’s website 
www.securcredential.com as well as on website of the Stock Exchange i.e., BSE Limited & NSE 
Limited at www.bseindia.com & https://www.nseindia.com for download. Physical copies of the 
aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s registered office for inspection during 
normal business hours on working days. 
  

5. Since the 23rd AGM will be held at the registered office of the company /through VC / OAVM, 
therefore we not required to annex the Route Map in this Notice.  
 

6. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the AGM are 
requested to send a duly certified copy of their Board Resolution authorizing their representatives 
to attend and vote at the AGM.   
 

7. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts and operations of the 
Company are requested to address their queries to the Chairman, so as to reach the registered office 
of the Company at least seven days before the date of the meeting, to enable the Company to make 
available the required information at the meeting, to the extent possible. 
 

8. Only registered members of the Company, as on the cut-off date decided for the purpose, being 
Friday, March 27, 2026, may attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting as provided under the 
provisions of the Companies Act. 
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9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent 

Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can 
submit their PAN to the Company / RTA. 
 

10. Electronic copy of the Annual Report for 2023-24 is being sent to all the members whose email IDs 
are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless 
any member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their 
email addresses, physical copies of the Annual Report for 2023-24 are being sent in the permitted 
mode. Members may further note that the said documents will also be available on the Company’s 
website for download. Physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the 
Company’s registered office for inspection during normal business hours on working days.   
 

11. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e-mail 
addresses for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from 
the Company electronically. 
 

12. Praveen Tiwari, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. F11648) of M/s. Praveen Tiwari 
& Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, have been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize 
the remote e-voting process as well as voting at the meeting, in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

13. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the member whose name appears as the first holder 
in the order of names as per Register of Members will be entitled to vote. 
 

14. Members are entitled to exercise their rights to vote through remote e-voting or vote during the 
Annual General Meeting of the Company. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday, March 31, 2026 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, 
April 2, 2026 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as 
on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday, March 27, 2026, may cast their vote electronically. The 
voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Friday, March 27, 2026. 
 
How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned 
below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, 
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Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. 
You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN 
No., Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received 
on registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting 
& voting during the meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and 
Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to 
e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website 
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 
the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You 
will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
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wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting.  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned 
below for seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi 
Tab and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the 
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the 
e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit 
the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
& New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 
 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email 
as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, 
user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all e-Voting 
Service Providers. 
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Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID 
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800-21-09911 
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B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities 
in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
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a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email 
sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the 
attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file 
is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL 
account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains 
your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 
your password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request 

at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, 
your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes 
on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 
check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 

are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 
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2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click 
on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 

shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote 

 
General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned 
copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested 
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the 
Scrutinizer by e-mail to cspraveentiwari@gmail.com / office@ptandassociates.in with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 
can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking 
on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five 
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through 
the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com 
or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Rahul Rajbhar at evoting@nsdl.com  

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set 
out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), 
AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to complianceofficer@secur.co.in. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
(complianceofficer@secur.co.in). If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login 
method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode. 
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3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user 
id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 
access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM 
ARE AS UNDER:- 

 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned 

above for remote e-voting. 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 

facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the 
NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access 
to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under 
“Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link 
placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member 
login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not 
have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may 
retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid 
last minute rush. 
  

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
 

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 

connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate 
any kind of aforesaid glitches. 
 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in 
advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
(complianceofficer@secur.co.in). The same will be replied by the company suitably. 
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6. Members who would like to express their views/ask questions as a speaker at the Meeting may pre-
register themselves by sending a request from their registered e-mail address mentioning their 
names, DP ID and Client ID/folio number, PAN and mobile number at 
complianceofficer@secur.co.in between Tuesday, March 31, 2026 (9.00 a.m. IST) and Thursday, 
April 2, 2026 (5.00 p.m. IST). Only those Members who have pre-registered themselves as a 
speaker will be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the AGM. The Company 
reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for the 
AGM. 

 
 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Secur Credentials Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
Director 
DIN: 03584695 
 
Date: March 12, 2026 
Place: Mumbai   
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

Item No. 3 

The Board appointed Mr. Bhimsen Vishwanath Pawar (DIN: 05357248) as an Additional Director of the 
Company, in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 & based on the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, as an Additional Director on the Board 
of the Company with effect from June 24, 2024 to hold office upto the date of the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.  
 
As per Section 161(1) of Companies Act, 2013, an additional director at any time shall hold office up to 
the date of the next Annual General Meeting or the last date on which the annual general meeting should 
have been held, whichever is earlier. Since the last date on which the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company should have been held on 30th September, 2024, the term of Mr. Bhimsen Vishwanath Pawar 
had ended on same date. 
 
Now, based on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Mr. Bhimsen 
Vishwanath Pawar who has also provided his consent is proposed to be appointed in the capacity of Whole 
Time Director  
 
Mr. Bhimsen Vishwanath Pawar is not related to any other director or promoter of the Company.  
 
The Board of Directors recommends the resolution set forth in item No. 3 for approval of the Members.  
 
None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the accompanying Notice of 
the AGM.  

 
A brief profile of Mr. Bhimsen Vishwanath Pawar for his appointment as Executive Director is mentioned in 
the table annexed to the notice. 

Item No. 4 

The Members are informed that M/s. S.D. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, have tendered their 
resignation as Statutory Auditors of the Company with effect from January 12, 2026, thereby resulting in 
a casual vacancy in the office of the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

In terms of the provisions of Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, any casual vacancy caused by resignation of the Statutory Auditors shall be 
filled by the Board of Directors within thirty days, and such appointment shall also be approved by the 
Members of the Company within three months of the recommendation of the Board. 

Accordingly, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee (where applicable) and subject to the 
approval of the Members, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on January 12, 2026, appointed M/s. 
JPMD & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 133085W), as the Statutory Auditors 
of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. S.D. Mehta & Co., to hold 
office from January 12, 2026, until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
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Further, pursuant to Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company proposes to appoint M/s. 
JPMD & Associates as Statutory Auditors to conduct the statutory audit, at such remuneration and 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses as may be mutually agreed between the Board of Directors and 
the Auditors. 

The Company has received written consent from M/s. JPMD & Associates to act as Statutory Auditors of 
the Company, along with a certificate confirming that their appointment, if made, would be in accordance 
with the provisions of Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they satisfy the criteria 
provided under Section 141 of the Act. 

The Board of Directors are of the opinion that the appointment of M/s. JPMD & Associates as Statutory 
Auditors is in the best interest of the Company and therefore recommends passing of the Ordinary 
Resolution set out in the Notice for approval of the Members. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, interested 
in the proposed resolution. 
 
 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
For Secur Credentials Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
Director 
DIN: 03584695 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
To, 
The Members, 
SecUR Credentials Limited. 
 
Your Directors are pleased to present their 23rd Annual Report together with the Audited financial 
statements of your Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
(Rupees in Lakhs) 

Particulars F.Y. 2023-24 F.Y. 2022-23 

Revenue From Operations 2,812.89 5,001.34 
Other Income 573.66 134.10 
Total Income 3,386.55 5,135.44 
Total Expenses 4,069.99 4,079.87 
Profit/(loss) before tax -683.44 1,055.57 
Prior Period Tax -295.43 - 
Current tax - 269.87 
Deferred tax -142.50 7.11 
Total Tax expense -437.94 276.98 
Profit/(loss) after tax  -245.50 778.59 
Earnings per share (EPS)   
Basic -0.60 1.90 
Diluted -0.60 1.90 
 

2. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATION/ STATE OF COMPANIES AFFAIRS 
During the year under review, the Company has earned a Total Revenue of Rs. 3,386.55 lakhs as 
compared to Rs. 5,135.44 lakhs in the previous year. The Company has incurred the Net Loss of 
Rs. 245.50 lakhs as compared to Net Profit of Rs. 778.59 lakhs in the previous year. 
 

3. TRANSFER TO THE RESERVES 
Your Directors do not propose any amount to be transferred to the Reserves for the year ended 
31st March 2024. 
 

4. DIVIDEND 
During the financial year, your Company does not declare any dividend for the year 2023-24. 
 

5. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS 
During the financial year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business of the 
Company. 
 

6. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their 
knowledge, confirm that- 
a) In the preparation of the accounts the applicable accounting standards have been followed 
along with proper explanations relating to material departure; 
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b) Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and have made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the 
Company for that year; 
c) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
d) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
e) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 
f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

7. TRANSFER TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 
During the financial year under review, the Company was not required to transfer any funds to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund as per the provisions of Section 125 of the Act. 
 

8. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated under 
Regulation 34(2)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) is presented in a separate 
section forming part of this Annual Report. 
 

9. SHARE CAPITAL 
During the year under review, the authorized share capital of the Company was increased from 
₹51 crore to ₹80 crore which was approved by the members of the Company through Postal Ballot 
September 9, 2023 and the Issued, Subscribed and paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company 
remains unchanged as ₹ 41.06 crore as on March 31, 2024. 
 
During the year under review, there were no further public issue, rights issue or preferential issue 
held in the Company. The Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights or sweat 
equity shares during the year. 
 

10. CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into with the related parties during the year 
under review were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and are 
enclosed herewith as Form No. AOC-2. 
 

11. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
Since, your company is neither having any subsidiaries or associate companies nor has entered 
into any joint ventures with any other company, the provision is not applicable. 
 

12. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
Since the Company does not have any subsidiary, associate company or joint venture within the 
meaning of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable accounting standards. 
 
Accordingly, the requirement of preparing Consolidated Financial Statements as prescribed 
under Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the applicable provisions of the 

21



Ministry of Corporate Affairs does not apply to the Company for the financial year ended 31st 
March, 2024. 
 
Therefore, the Company has prepared only the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial 
year during the period under review. 
 

13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 the Corporate Governance Report, and the Auditors’ Certificate regarding 
Compliance to Corporate Governance requirements and attached as “Annexure-V” forming part 
of this Director’s Report. 
 

14. LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 
The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 are given in the notes 
to the Financial Statements. 
 

15. PUBLIC DEPOSIT 
During the financial year 2023-2024, your Company has not accepted any fixed deposits within 
the meaning of section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 
 

16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 
The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule, 8 of 
The Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are as under. 
 
(A) Conservation of Energy: 

The production and manufacturing activities are not carried on by the Company and due to 
that no usage of energy. Hence, no steps are taken by the Company for conservation of energy. 

(B) Technology Absorption: 
 

The company has not imported any technology during the year and as such there is nothing to 
report. 
 

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:                                                        (Rs. in lakhs) 

Particulars 31-03-2024 31-03-2023 

Foreign Exchange Earnings 65.82 63.50 

Foreign Exchange Outgo’s NIL 32.78 

 
17. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

Appointment: 
During the Financial year, none of the Directors were appointed during the period under review. 
 
Directors retiring by rotation 
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Pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ashish Ramesh 
Mahendrakar who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment at the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
Resignation:  
During the Financial year, Mr. Mithun Lalitkumar Kothari (DIN: 07520793) has resigned from 
w.e.f. 06th February, 2024 as an Independent Director of the Company.  
 
Subsequent to the end of the financial year March 31, 2024:  
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 24th June, 2024 appointed Mr. Bhimsen Vishwanath 
Pawar (DIN: 05357248) as Additional Directors designated as an Executive Director on the Board 
of Directors of the Company w.e.f. June 24, 2024 and is proposed to be regularized as Whole Time 
Director in the AGM to be held on 2024. 
 
Mr. Prateek Jain (DIN: 08611660) and Mr. Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji (DIN: 09663640) had 
tendered their resignation as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 18th June, 2024. 
 
Further, pursuant to SEBI order no. WTM/AB/CFD/CFD–SEC–5/30420/2024–25 dated June 13, 
2024, Mr. Rahul Belwalkar (DIN: 02497535) had resigned from the Board of the Company as the 
Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 17th June, 2024. 
 
Ms. Khushbu Chiragbhai Shah, has tendered her resignation from the position as a Company 
Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect from October 2, 2023. 
 
Ms. Stuti Pareek as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the company with effect 
from 24th June, 2024 and has resigned from her position as the Company Secretary of the 
Company; with effect from 6th March, 2025. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the current Key Managerial 
Personnel (KMPs) of the Company are:- 

1. Mr. Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar -  Chief Financial Office & Executive Director 
2. Mr. Bhimsen Vishwanath Pawar -  Executive Director 
3. Ms. Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan  - Non-Executive – Independent Director 
4. Mr. Amit Kumar Bharti - Non-Executive–Independent Director 

 
15.DISCLOSURE BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
Your Company has received declarations from each independent director under Section 149(7) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence laid down in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Board has reviewed integrity, expertise and experience (including the proficiency) of the 
independent directors appointed during the year; and The Board has confirmed that the 
independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are 
independent of the management. 
 
16.BOARD EVALUATION 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of 
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its own performance and that of its committees as well as performance of Directors individually 
through internally developed questionnaire on performance evaluation. 
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual 
directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the Board 
and committee meetings. 
 
The performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole was carried 
out by the Independent Directors. The performance evaluation of the Non-Executive Directors 
and Chairman of the Company was also carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors 
expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 
 
17. MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Composition of the Board of Directors of the Company is in conformity with the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2013 as well as SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss on Company’s Business policy/strategy apart 
from other business of the Board. The details pertaining to number of Board Meetings held during 
the financial year under review set out in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
18. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
There are currently four Committees of the Board, as follows: 
1. Audit Committee 
2. Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
3. Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 
4. Corporate & Social Responsibility Committee 

 
Details of all the Committees along with their charters, composition and meetings held during the 
year, are provided in the “Director Report” and “Corporate Governance Report”, as a part of this 
Annual Report. 
 
19. RISK MANAGEMENT 
The management continuously assess the risk involved in the business and all out efforts are 
made to mitigate the risk with appropriate action. The risk management framework of the 
Company is appropriate compared to the size of the Company and the environment under which 
the Company operates. The Company has appointed Mr. Richard D’souza as Chief Risk Officer to 
look after and mitigate the risk factors. 
 
20. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 
The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197 (12) of the 
Companies Act,2013 read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report as “Annexure-III”. 
 
Information required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (2) and 
5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Management Personnel) Rule, 2014, 
and forming part of Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2024 is given in a separate 
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annexure to this report. The said annexure is not being sent along with this report to the members 
of the Company in line with the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
21. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 
In terms of Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 the Corporate Governance Report, the Management Discussion & Analysis 
Statement, and the Auditors’ Certificate regarding Compliance to Corporate Governance 
requirements are part of this Annual Report. 
 
22. ANNUAL RETURN 
In terms of Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Section 134(3) (a) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Return of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is available on 
the website of the Company at www.securcredential.com.    
 
23.DISCLOSURE RELATING TO REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION POLICY 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134 and Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 
read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated 
nomination and remuneration policy to provide a framework for remuneration of members of 
the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company. 
 
The details of this policy are explained in Corporate Governance Report. No changes were made 
in nomination and remuneration policy during the financial year under review. 
 
The details of this policy are explained in Corporate Governance Report. No changes were made 
in nomination and remuneration policy during the financial year under review. 
 
The NRC Policy can be accessed on the website of the Company at www.securcredential.com. 
 
24. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (“CSR”)  
The Company has in place CSR Policy which outlines the Company’s philosophy and responsibility 
and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially impactful programs 
towards welfare and sustainable development of the community around the area of its 
operations. The Policy is disclosed on the website of the Company at www.securcredential.com. 
 
The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the 
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in 
“Annexure-IV” to this Report in the format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. For other details regarding the CSR Committee, please refer 
to the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
25.VIGIL MECHANISM AND WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
The Company has adopted a whistle blower mechanism for directors and employees to report 
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Company’s code 
of conduct. The policy provides direct access to the chairman of the audit committee to the whistle 
blowers. No one was denied access to the same. The Policy is disclosed on the website of the 
Company at www.securcredential.com. 
 
26.STATUTORY AUDITOR 
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M/s. S D Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants having (FRN: 137193W) were appointed in the AGM 
of 2020-21 for period of 5 years to hold the office till the conclusion of 26th Annual General 
Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2026. 
 
However, M/s. S.D. Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, (ICAI Firm Registration No. 137193W), 
have tendered their resignation as Statutory Auditors of the Company with effect from January 
12, 2026, thereby resulting in a casual vacancy in the office of the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company. 
 
Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee (where applicable) and subject to the 
approval of the Members, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on January 12, 2026, 
appointed M/s. JPMD & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 133085W), as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. 
S.D. Mehta & Co., to hold office from January 12, 2026, until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual 
General Meeting. 
 
Further, pursuant to Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company proposes to 
appoint M/s. JPMD & Associates as Statutory Auditors for conducting the statutory audit, 
commencing from the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2025 till 31st March, 2029 and to conduct 
the Audit of the same. 
 
27.SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors 
had appointed M/s. Mukesh J & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to undertake the 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24. 
 
However the Board has now appointed M/s. Praveen Tiwari and Associates as the Secretarial 
Auditors of the Company for conducting audit for Financial Year 2023-24 and 2024-25. 
Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 given by Praveen Tiwari and Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries has been provided in an “Annexure-I” which forms part of the Directors 
Report. 
 
There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark made in their Secretarial Audit Report 
submitted to the Company. 
 
28.EXPLANATION TO AUDITOR’S REMARKS IN AUDITOR’S REPORT 
I. Remarks in Statutory Audit Report and reply by management- 

1. We draw attention to the Note - 12 of the financial statements, which discloses a debit 
balance of Rs. 205.09 Lakhs in the director’s ledger account, representing an amount 
receivable from the director. 
 
The management has indicated that this balance pertains to payments made to the director 
for expenses incurred on behalf of the company. However, in the absence of supporting 
documentation such as invoices or vouchers, these expenses have not been recorded in the 
books of account. 
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In accordance with Ind AS 37, recognition of such amounts requires sufficient and 
appropriate evidence. The absence of such evidence gives rise to uncertainty regarding the 
existence and recoverability of the balance. 
 
Furthermore, as this constitutes a related party transaction under Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the requisite disclosures under Section 134(3)(n) and Ind AS 24 are 
applicable. 
 
Our audit procedures to verify the existence and recoverability of this balance were limited 
due to lack of documentary evidence. 
 
Reply by management – The Director in question has submitted a working of payments 
made by him on behalf of the Company, which are to be offset against this amount, as per him. 
The Company is reviewing the details given by the director along with the supporting 
evidences, however, due to non-availability of staff the same has not yet been completed. 
 

2. For the balance outstanding to the credit of the Statement of Profit and loss under the head 
"Unbilled Revenue", no Invoices have been raised by the company, till the date of issuance 
of this report and as such, the balance remains the same till date. In absence of relevant 
details, the balance amount of the said item could not be verified and thereby the 
compliance with Ind AS 115 – “Revenue from contract with customer” could not be verified. 
 
Reply by management- Company is collating the details of unbilled revenue for record 
purpose. 
 

3. During the year, the company has not collected interest on the loans advanced and 
advances outstanding as at 31st March, 2024. 
 
Reply by management- The loans and advances given were trade advances without interest 
and hence the same is not collected. 
 

4. The reconciliation and verification of the statutory dues, outstanding and paid, could not be 
made as the relevant details have not been provided to us. 
 
Reply by management- Company is in process of reconciliation and verification of the 
statutory dues, outstanding and paid. 
 

5. The company had made an advance payment of Rs. 599.70 lakhs standing as opening 
balance since past many years as an advance for the purpose of acquiring an immovable 
property. However, till date, no acquisition has been made against such advance. 
 
Reply by management- The Company has not made the balance payment towards the 
acquisition, and hence the acquisition is pending. 
 

6. Expected Credit Loss Provision has not been provided on the advances given by the 
company, and thereby, there is an inconsistency of Accounting Policies in the financial 
statements as well as non-compliance of Ind AS 109. 
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Reply by management- Company is expecting those advances to be recoverable and hence 
provision of expected credit loss is not made. 
 

7. Documentation regarding major expenditure have not been made available for the purpose 
of verification. Also, the third party confirmations for - trade payables, trade receivables, 
parties to whom advances have been made, parties from whom unsecured loans have been 
taken - have not been provided by the company and thereby the said balances are not 
confirmed to that extent. 
 
Reply by management- The soft copies of invoices were shared with Auditor, however they 
were insisting on providing physical copies. Due to non-availability of staff, the same could not 
be completed. 
 

8. An amount of payment due to be paid against the purchase of property to the tune of Rs. 
331.26 Lakhs reflecting under the head of Sundry Creditors , has been booked as income 
during the year by the company. 
 
Reply by management- The balance amount due against purchase of property is not 
payable and hence same is booked as income. 
 

9. The bifurcation of MSME and Non-MSME debtors and creditors has not been made by the 
company and to that extent the requirements of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 
have not been complied with. 
 
Reply by management- Due to non-availability of staff, we are not able to provide 
bifurcation for the same. 
 

10. The company has received an Interim order from SEBI regarding certain transactions being 
alleged as fictitious transactions, in which Varanium Cloud Ltd, and its director 
Harshvardhan Samble are also involved. However, the said order has been challanged by 
the earstwhile director Shri Rahul Belwalkar in the Hon'le Bombay High court. However, 
the evidence for such challenged in the Hon’le Bombay High Court is not provided by the 
company. As regards to the transactions carried out with Varanium Cloud Ltd., there are 
credit notes issued to the said entity and thereby the sales made in the earlier financial year 
has been reversed to the tune of Rs. 235.76/- lakhs. The reason behind cancellation, as 
informed by the management is cancellation of an ongoing project. However, except the 
representation letter, we have not been provided with any other detail or correspondence 
of the said cancellation. 
 
Reply by management- Based on the confirmed order from Varnium cloud and assurance 
of payment in advance, the company had commenced work on project and raised in voice for 
the same to Varanium Cloud Ltd , however 100% advance payment not having been received, 
the company stopped working project and cancelled the invoice. 
 

11. A borrowing from HDFC Bank has been repaid during the year as seen from the books of 
accounts. However, "No due certificate" or bank statement or the relevant records have not 
been provided by the company to verify the correctness of the said closure of the 
borrowing. 
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Reply by management- Company is doing followup with customer care team to obtain no 
dues certificate. 
 

12. Expenses booked under the head Business promotion expenses, which have been paid 
through a credit card could not be verified due to non-availibility of statements and other 
relevant records. 
 
Reply by management- Due to multiple shifting of offices, and shortage of staff, the 
Company is unable to provide supporting for the credit card statements. 
 

13.  We draw attention to the presentation of the financial statements, which mandates the 
disclosure requirement regarding the share-holding of equity share holder holding more 
than 5% and share-holding of promoters as per Schedule III of companies Act, 2013. The 
non-disclosure in the financial statements, in our opinion is a non-compliance of schedule 
– III. 
 
Reply by management- Company had not received shareholding pattern from RTA and 
hence the same was not submitted to Auditor. Now the company has received shareholding 
pattern and same has been uploaded on NSE and BSE.  The promoters are not holding shares 
of company and reclassification of the same is approved in last AGM. 
 

14.  We Draw attention to the presentation of the financial statements, which mandates the 
disclosure requirements regarding the related party details, related party transactions and 
balance outstanding at the balance sheet date as per Ind AS - 24. The management has 
informed us that they have not prepared and disclosed the comprehensive list of related 
parties, the nature and volume of transactions, and the balance outstanding as on the 
balance sheet date as required by the aforementioned standard. Consequently, we were 
unable to confirm that all required disclosures regarding related parties, related party 
transactions, and outstanding balances, which are essential for a proper understanding of 
the financial statements, have been made. In our opinion, the omission of these disclosures 
is material to the financial statements.  
 
Reply by management- Related party transaction are shown in notes to accounts. 
 

15. The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees, which falls under 
the scope of Ind AS 19 on Employee Benefits. This standard requires the gratuity liability, 
being a Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO), to be measured using the Projected Unit Credit 
(PUC) method based on an actuarial valuation. Furthermore, the standard mandates 
extensive disclosures regarding the actuarial assumptions, sensitivity analyses, movement 
in the DBO, and the net liability recognized in the financial statements. 
 
The management has not provided us with an actuarial valuation report for the gratuity 
plan as at the balance sheet date, nor have they included the required disclosures in the 
notes to the financial statements. Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any 
adjustment was necessary in respect of the gratuity liability and the related expenses 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
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We are, therefore, unable to quantify the extent of the understatement of the gratuity 
liability and the impact of the non-disclosure of the required information on the financial 
statements. In our opinion, the failure to recognize and disclose the defined benefit 
obligation in accordance with Ind AS - 19 is material to the financial statements. 
 
Reply by management- Many employees left the organization and hence due to non-
availability of staff the same has been delayed. 
 

16. The preparation and presentation of financial statements require the Company to disclose 
material information relating to Contingent Liabilities, as mandated by Ind AS 37 on 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets. The management failed to 
provide us with the necessary documentation and details regarding the following two 
material items, preventing us from fulfilling our audit responsibilities concerning the 
disclosure of contingent liabilities: 

a. Disputed Statutory Dues: The Company has various ongoing disputes with statutory 
authorities regarding taxes and other levies. However, the management did not provide a 
comprehensive schedule detailing the nature, amounts, probability of outflow, and 
management's estimate of the eventual financial effect for these disputed dues. 
Consequently, we were unable to verify and assess the adequacy of the disclosures related 
to material disputed liabilities. 

b. Bank Guarantee Commitments: The Company has obtained a Bank Guarantee from its 
bankers against certain commitments. Management has failed to provide us with the details 
of the amount, beneficiary, nature of the underlying commitment, and expiry date of this 
bank guarantee. As a result, the necessary disclosure regarding this financial commitment 
has been omitted from the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Due to the absence of the requisite details and supporting evidence, we were unable to 
determine the full impact of these two unquantified exposures on the Company’s financial 
position and the complete and accurate presentation of the notes on contingent liabilities 
and commitments. The non-disclosure of this information is considered a material non-
compliance with the required Indian accounting standards. 
 
Reply by management- With regards to the bank guarantee, the amount was Rs 5 lakh and 
was not material. It had been taken against a specific client’s contract, and when the specific 
contract ended, the bank guarantee was ended. 
 

II. Remarks in Secretarial Audit Report and reply by management- 
1. Company has not submitted the Financial Results to the Exchange for the period/year 

ended March 31, 2024 within the period prescribed under Regulation 33 of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015. 

2. The Company has not held Annual General Meeting for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2024 within the period prescribed under Section 96 of Companies Act, 2013 including 
extension provided by the Registrar of Companies, if any. 

3. The Company has not filed Form AOC-4 XBRL with the Registrar of Companies, for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2024 as prescribed under Section 137 of Companies Act, 
2013 and ruled made thereunder. 
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4. The Company has also not filed MGT-7 with the Registrar of Companies, for the financial 
year ended 31st March, 2024 as prescribed under Section 92 of Companies Act, 2013 and 
ruled made thereunder. 

5. The Company has not approved Financial Results for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2024 within the time prescribed under Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

6. Mr. Pankaj Ramesh Vyas, Promoter of the Company; Mr. Kalpesh Ramesh Vyas, Mr. Urvesh 
Janak Vyas, Mrs. Vaishali Pankaj Vyas and Mrs. Vijayaben Rameshchandra Vyas, Promoter 
Group of the Company, on July 27, 2023 had again applied for seeking reclassification to 
public category. The Company had earlier made the announcement for Receipt of 
Application for Reclassification of the above Promoters to public category and approval of 
members was also taken on September 19, 2022 at Annual General Meeting. However, the 
approval of stock exchanges was not obtained. 

7. SEBI vide its confirmatory order (WTM/AB/CFD/CFD-SEC-5/30745/2024-25) dated 
September 9, 2024 has taken strict action against SecUR Credentials Ltd. and its Managing 
Director (MD) Rahul Belwalkar, confirming a ban from the securities market in September 
2024 following an initial June 2024 interim order under its enquiry initiated due to alleged 
diversion of funds, material related party transactions without approval, and stock 
manipulation, found that the MD transferred company funds to personal/connected 
entities. 

8. Pursuant to the said interim of SEBI, Mr. Rahul Belwalkar, Managing Director is prohibited 
from holding any directorship position in any listed company or SEBI-registered 
intermediary and had thereby resigned from the Company. 

 
Reply by management- 
 
The Company is taking necessary corrective measures and is in the process of complying with the 
pending applicable regulatory requirements.  
 

29.ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
The Company has undertaken an audit for the financial year 2023-24 for all applicable 
compliances as per Securities and Exchange Board of India Regulations and Circulars/Guidelines 
issued thereunder. The Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year 2023-24, does not 
contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The Secretarial Compliance Report has 
been provided in an “Annexure-II”. 
 
30. COST AUDITOR 
As per the requirement of the Central Government and pursuant to section 148 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, read with Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to 
time, your company hereby confirms that the financial provisions is not applicable, hence your 
company needs not required to appoint cost auditor for 2023-24. 
 
31.DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR 
COURTS OR TRIBUNAL 
During the year, an interim order dated 13 June 2024 was passed by the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India in the matter of the Company. Subsequently, SEBI issued a confirmatory order 
dated 9 September 2024, confirming the directions contained in the interim order. The 
Company has submitted its responses and is cooperating with the regulatory authorities in the 
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matter. The management continues to take appropriate steps to ensure compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations and will take necessary actions based on further directions issued 
by the regulator. 
 
32.SUSPENSION OF TRADING 
The trading in the securities of the Company was suspended by NSE Limited and BSE Limited 
(Stock Exchanges) due to non-payment of Annual Listing Fees and non-submission of financial 
results / non-compliance with listing requirements.  
 
The Board of Directors informs that the Company has paid the pending Annual Listing Fees and 
has also taking necessary corrective measures and is in the process of complying with the 
applicable regulatory requirements for revocation of the suspension. 
 
33.INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROL 
Your Company has appointed M/s. S. M. Bhat & Associates, Chartered Accountant, as its Internal 
Auditor for the Financial Year 2023-24. He takes care of the internal audit and controls, systems 
and processes in the Company. He is supported in discharge of his duties by firms of chartered 
accountants (namely M/s. S.D. Mehta & Co.). Your Company has in place adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements commensurate with the size, scale 
and complexity of its operations. 
 
During the year, the Company continued to implement their suggestions and recommendations 
to improve the control environment. Their scope of work includes review of processes for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems 
and processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas. Internal Auditors findings 
are discussed with the process owners and suitable corrective actions have been taken as per the 
directions of Audit Committee on an ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations. 
 
34.FRAUD REPORTING 
During the year, no fraud whether actual, suspected or alleged was reported to the Board of 
Directors. 
 
35. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARRASSMENT AT WORKPLACE 
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding. 
All employees (permanent, on probation, contractual, temporary, and employees on third party 
payroll) are covered under this Policy. Entire staff in the Company is working in a most congenial 
manner and there are no occurrences of any incidents of sexual harassment during the year. 
During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with all the provisions of the 
POSH Act and the rules framed thereunder. Further details are as follows: 
 

a. Number of complaints of Sexual Harassment received in the Year- NIL 
b. Number of Complaints disposed off during the year- NIL 
c. Number of cases pending for more than ninety days- NIL 

 
36.CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

32



Statements in the Annual Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and 
Analysis may constitute forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable laws and 
regulations. Although the expectations are based on the reasonable assumption, the actual results 
might differ. 
 
37.GENERAL 
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items 
as there were no transactions for the same during the year under review: 
a. Material changes and/ or commitments that could affect the Company’s financial position, 

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of 
this report. 

b. Significant or material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals, impacting 
the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

c. Frauds reported as per Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
d. The details of application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year along with their status as at the end 
of the financial year; and. 

e. The details of difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time 
settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial 
Institutions along with the reasons thereof. 
 

38.ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
The Board of Directors would like to express its appreciation for the dedicated and sincere 
efforts of the employees of the Company for their unstinted support throughout the year. The 
Board is also thankful to all its stakeholders including Bankers, Investors, members, customers, 
consultants, vendors, contractors etc. for their continued support and confidence reposed in the 
Company. 

 
By the Order of Board of Directors                 
For SecUR Credentials Limited                                 
 
 
Sd/-                                                                             Sd/-  
Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar                        Bhimsen Vishwanath Pawar 
Exective Director                                                 Exective Director                                                 
DIN: 03584695                                                      DIN: 05357248  

Date: March 10, 2026 
Place: Mumbai 
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FORM NO. AOC -2 
 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: NIL 
 

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name (s) of the 
related party & 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/arrang
ements/transacti
on 

Duration of 
the 
contracts/ar
rangements
/transaction 

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements or 
transaction 
including the 
value, if any 

Date of 
approv
al by 
the 
Board 

Amoun
t paid 
as 
advanc
es, if 
any 

1. SecUR Staffing 
Services Pvt 
Ltd 

Sales or Purchase FY 2023-24 193.63 23.05.2
023 

NIL 

 
 
By the Order of Board of Directors                 
For SecUR Credentials Limited                                 
 
Sd/-  
Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar  
Director                                                                          
DIN: 03584695 
  
Date: March 10, 2026 
Place: Mumbai 
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Shree Kamdhenu Estate Office On 10-17 Behind Vibgyor School Mindspace, Off Link Road Malad West, Mumbai, 
Maharashtra 400064 I+91 22 6264 7700 I www.secur.co.in | complianceofficer@secur.co.in 
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May 30, 2024 

To,                                          To,  
National Stock Exchange of India Limited,                                  BSE Limited  
Exchange Plaza,                                                                                 Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),                                                Dalal Street, Fort 
Mumbai 400 051.                                                                              Mumbai - 400 001                                                                       
 
NSE Scrip – SECURCRED                  BSE Scrip: 543625 
 
Dear Sir/Mam, 
    
Sub: SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH, 2024 
 
Pursuant to Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed herewith the Annual Secretarial 
Compliance Report issued by M/s. Mukesh J & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Ahmedabad 
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 
You are requested to kindly take the same on record. 
 
Thanking you 
Yours faithfully, 
 
For SecUR Credentials Limited 
 
 
 
Rahul Belwalkar 
Managing Director 
DIN: 02497535 
 

RAHUL 
BELWALK
AR

Digitally signed by RAHUL BELWALKAR 
DN: c=IN, o=Person, ou=Others, postalCode=400072, 
l=Mumbai Suburban, st=Maharashtra, street=FLAT 
NO 1004 10TH FLOOR VILLAGE CHANDIVALI 
MUMBAI, Mumbai, Kurla Maharashtra India- 400072- 
CTS NO 46/4 PLOT NO 5, title=7089, 
2.5.4.20=9800611732d3c715b86040be164ae8133b5
7c54f624b3126a3f7978eb60862cc, 
serialNumber=57dd5a2841e089242fc287e396b66e3
6d739d7227d121aad87e0f7df3b2086fe, email=rahul.
belwalkar@secur.co.in, cn=RAHUL BELWALKAR 
Date: 2024.05.30 21:56:58 +05'30'
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To, 

MUKESH J & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

Firm No. $2021GJ796900 

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report of 

SecUR Credentials Limited 

(CIN: L74110MH2001PLC133050) 

For the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 

SecUR Credentials Limited 

Shree Kamdhenu Estate Office, 10-17, 

Behind Vibgyor School, Mindspace, 

Off Link Road, Malad West, 

Mumbai — 400 064 

We have examined 

a) 

b) 

o) 
d) 

all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Secur 

Credentials Limited ("the Listed entity"), 

the filings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges, 

website of the listed entity, 

any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this 

certification; 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 ("Review Period") in respect of compliance with the provisions of: 

a) 

b) 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") and the Regulations, circulars, 

guidelines issued thereunder; and 

the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the 

Regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

("SEBI"); 

The specific Regulations, whose provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have 

been examined, include: - 

a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015; 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations,2018; 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not Applicable 

as no securities were bought back during the term under review) 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable as no such scheme was introduced for Employees) 

éss -503, Suyojan Complex, Swastik Cross Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009 
(@) csmukesh.i@outlook.com B +91635¢€ 199
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fls MUKESH J & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

Firm No. $2021G796900 

f)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; 

(Not Applicable as no Debt securities are listed or issued by the Company) 

g) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 

Regulations, 2021; (Not Applicable as no such preference shares are listed or issued by the 

Company) 

h) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

j)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not 

applicable for the review period) 

k) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2011; 

and based on the above examination and confirmation received from management of the Company 

as and wherever required, | hereby report that, the listed entity has complied with the provisions of 

the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines Issued thereunder, except in respect of matters 

specified below (Table a): - 

Sr. | Compliance | Regulation | Deviations | Action Type of “Fine Observatio | Management 

No. | Requiremen | /Circular Taken by | Action Amount | ns/ Response 

t No. \ Remarks of 

| (Regulation (Advisor \ Practicing 

| | s/ circulars/ y/Clarifi | Company 

guidelines [ cation/Fi Secretary 

including ne/Sho | 

specific 1 | w Cause 

| clause) { | Notice/ 

[ Warning | 

setc.) 

1. | Submission | Regulation | Delay  in | NSE and | Fine Rs. fine | The abundant 

| of Financial | 33 of SEBI | Submission | BSE 41,300/~ | amounting | precaution will 

Results (Listing | of Financial each by | Rs. | be taken for | 

within 45 | Obligation | Results for both 41200/‘3“ | timely 

| days  from | s and | the quarter Exchang z: 2 08 intimation  to | 

the end of | Disclosure | and half es January, | the Exchanges 

Half Year - | Requireme | year ended 2024 and | 

| Regulation | nt) on I NSE  fine 

133 of SEBI i Regulation | September ; payment is 

(tooR) ¢ | s2015 30,2023 52“'1% 

{ | Regulations, | ‘ R B | | 

i ‘ | \ 4] ! | 

1503, Suyojan Complex, Swastik Cross Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009 

] (@) csmukesh.j@outlook.co y 
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MUKESH J & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

Firm No. 520216796900 

’72, Submission | Regulation | Delay in | NSE & | Fine Rs. ['The filing | The abundant \ 

of 31(1)(b) of | submission | BSE 11,800/ | has  been | Precaution will | 

Shareholdin | SEBI of each by | done on | be taken for 

g  Pattern | (Listing Shareholdin both 291 timely 

Report- Obligation | g pattern for Exchang | October, compliance 

Regulation | s and | the Quarter es 2023 and | with the 

31(1)(b) of | Disclosure ended fine has | Exchanges. 

SEBI (LODR) | Requireme | September been paid 

Regulations, | nt) 2023 to NSE on 

2015 Regulation 8" 

s, 2015 
December, 

2023 and to 

BSE on 12" 

December, | 

e 
2023. | 

3. | Submission | Regulation | Delay in | NSE | Clarificat | Rs. The report | The company 

of 27(2)  of | submission ion 2,360/- | has been | was not 

Corporate SEBI of submitted getting otp on 

Governance | (Listing Corporate on 24" | registered mail 

Report- Obligation | Governance January, id and mobile 

Regulation s and | report  for 2024 and | number  for 

27(2) of SEBI | Disclosure | the quarter NSE has | logging in to 

(LODR) Requireme | ended  on advised the NSE site | 

regulations, | nt) 33 company to | therefore, the 

2015 Regulation | December, comply company had 

s, 2015 2023, with  the | submitted the 

regulation report through 

on timely | mail. 

manner. 

Further,  the 

company  will 

ensure to do 
compliances 

before last 

date in order 

to avoid such 

technical 

issues at last 
| moment. 

dddress -503, Suyojan Complex, Swastik Cros: 

@) 

s Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009
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MUKESH J & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

Firm No. 52021GJ796900 

4. Filling  the \ Regulation | Non filling | BSE & | Fine Rs. The The company | 

vacancy of}fi(l)ofSEBI of vacancy | NSE 1,06,20 | company Is searching for 

Company (LODR) of Company 0/- each | has not | the  suitable 

Secretary Regulation | Secretary. by both | appointed | candidate for 

within 3 15,2015 exchang | company appointment. 

month  of es Secretary 

resignation | till date due 

of previous | to change 

cs- | in 
Regulation | manageme | 

6(1) of SEBI nt and non- 

(LODR) | availability 

Regulations, 
of suitable 

2015 candidate 

for the said 

| Sl kine et S pOSL7 2 

5. | submission | Regulation | Delay in [ NSE & | Fine by | Rs. The The abundant 

of Annual | 24Aof SEBI | submission | BSE | NSE and 18,880/~ | company Precaution will 

Secretarial (LODR) of report Warning has filed | be taken for 

Compliance | Regulation | under with the report | timely 

Report - |s,2018 Regulation extensio on compliance 

Regulation 24A for the n by BSE 07/06/202 | with the 

‘ 24A of SEBI year ended 3 on BSE | Exchanges. | 

| | (LODR) | 31 March, | | and  NSE | 

} Regulations, 2023 | and  fine 

| 2018 | | amount s 

| paid  on 
14/07/202 

I- 
3 — 

6. | Promoter Regulation | Non- NSE & | Applicati | NA The The company 

[ Reclassificat | 31A of SEBI | submission | BSE on company has made 

| ion ~ | (LODR) of required Rejected has  filed | delayed | 

Regulation Regulation | documents promoter payments  of | 

31A s,2018 or reclassificat | processing 

clarification ion twice in | fees to both 

with a year but | the exchanges 

exchanges the same | due toliquidity 

along  with got crunch. 

(s non- rejected 

oA | payment of due to non- | Further,  the 

| oy | processing | payment/ | company will 

s R fees. | 1ate | take 
payment of | precautions 

processing | and will create 

fees  and | separate 

delayed/no | reserves  for 

| in 

i | 
| 

508, Suyojan Complex, Swastk Cross 
/ (@)¢ ) 

Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009 

0 +916356354599
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MUKESH J & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

Firm No. $2021GJ796300 

submission | such 
of requisite | payments. 

documents 
/clarificatio 
ns to the | 

| exchange. 

7. | Pdon Regulation | Only 4 days’ | - - - The The abundant 

Intimation 29 of SEBI | Intimation company Precaution will 

of Board | (LODR) was given to has not | be taken for 

Meeting for | Regulation | Stock given timely | 

approval of | s, 2015 Exchange proper compliance 

Financial for  board prior with the 

results = meeting for | intimation | Exchanges. | 

Reg.29  of approval of for Board 

SEBI(LODR) Unaudited meeting 

regulations, Financial conducted | 

2015 = Results  of on 14" | 

the November, | 

Company 2023 for 

for the approval of | 

quarter and Unaudited 

half  year Financial 

ended on | Results for 

30t the quarter 

September, and half 

2023, year ended 

| 
on 30th 
September, 

| 2023 5l 

8. Related Regulation | Delay in |- - NIL The The abundant 

Party 23(9)  of | submission company Precaution will 

Transaction | SEBI of Related has be taken for | 

- Reg. 23(9) | (LODR) Party submitted timely 

of SEBI | Regulation Transaction Related compliance 

(LODR) s, 2015 Report  for Party with the 

Regulations, the half year Transaction | Exchanges. 

2015 | ended on report  of | 

March 2023 | the 

and mentioned 

1 September half year in 

2023. delayed 
manner i.e. 

| the 

| submission 
is not done 
on same | 

| day of 

783 
(- pord 24 Suyojan Complex, Swastik Cross Road, Navrangpuro, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009 

(@) Eimukesh i@ I ) stlock.c 116356354999
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[ | I declaration 

| of financial 
results. 

9. | The Listed | Regulation | Delay in | None - = The The abundant 

entity shall | 47 of SEBI | Publishing Company Precaution will 

publish (LODR) financial has be taken for 

financial Regulation | result  for published | timely 

result, as | s,2015 the guarter | financial compliance 

specified in and half | result  for | with the 

regulation year ended the quarter | Exchanges. 

33, along 30t and  half 

with the | September, year ended | 

modified | 2023 in 30" 

opinion(s) News paper September, 

or 
2023 in 

reservation( 
| delayed 

s), if any, 
manner i.e. 

expressed 
the gap 

by the 
exceeds 48 

auditor 
hours form 

within 48 
conclusion 

hours of | of  Board 

conclusion 
meeting in 

of the 
which 

meeting of | financials 

board of | 
were 

directors at 
approved. 

which  the 

financial | 

results were 

approved 
| 

a) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous 

reports (Table b): 

Address 503, Suyojan Complex, Swostik Cross Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009 

(@) csmukesh.j@out 25 k.com U +916356354999 
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'Compliance Regulation | Deviations Action | Type of | Fine Observatio [ Management 

Requiremen | /Circular Taken Action Amount | ns/ Response 

t No. by Remarks of 

(Regulation | (Advisor Practicing 

s/ circulars/ y/Clarifi Company 

guidelines | cation/Fi Secretary 

including ne/Sho 

specific w Cause 

clause) 
Notice/ 

Warning 

| , etc.) | 3 

"1, | submission | Regulation | Delayin NSEand | Fine 5900/- Fine was | The abundant 

of Financial | 33 of SEBI | Submission of | BSE eachby | paidto } Precaution will 

Results | (Listing Financial both BSE on | be taken for 

within 45 Obligation Results  for Exchang | December timely 

days from half es 21, 2022 e 

the end of = and year ended on and NSE intimation  to 

Half Year, - | Disclosure | september on the Exchanges. 

Regulation | Requireme | 30, December | 

33 of SEBI nt) 2022 22,2022 

(LODR) | Regulation | 
Regulations, | s, 2015 

2015. 

2 |Prior | Regulation |Omissionin | NSE & | Fine Rs. Finewas | The abundant 

Intimation 31(1)(b) of |filing of Prior | BSE 11,800/~ | paid to | Precaution will 

of | SEBI Intimation of each by | BSEand | be taken for 

Board i (Listing Board Meeting both NSE on timely 

Meeting- Obligation \held for fund Exchang | January intimation  to 

| Rgg\}lafion s and |raising. es. 28,2023. the Exchanges. 

29(2) of SEBI Disclosure 

(LQDR) Requireme 

Regulations, | nt) 

2015. Regulation | 

s, 2015 

\ L 

ress +503, Suyojan Complex, Swastik Cros 
(@] csmukest 
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Additional affirmations by Practicing Company Secretaries (PCS) in Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 

(ASCR): 

Sr. No. | Particulars Compliance ‘ Observations /Remarks b;\ 

status | PCS ‘ 

(Yes/No/NA) | 

SETT | Secretarial Standards: BT 

Yes £ 

The compliances of the listed entity are in| 

accordance with the applicable Secretarial 

Standards (SS) issued by the Institute of Company | | 

Secretaries India (ICSI), as notified by the Central 

Government under section 118(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and mandatorily applicable. ‘ 

2. | Adoption and timely updation of the Policies: 

s All applicable policies under SEBI Regulations Yes - 

are adopted with the approval of board of 

directors of the listed entities. | | 

| e All the policies are in conformity with SEBI | 

Regulations and have been reviewed & timely | 

updated as per the | 

regulations/circulars/guidelines issued by SEBI. 

3. tenance and disclosures on Website: The company has functional 

website but the disclosures | 

e The Listed entity is maintaining a functional are not made on timely | 

website. No basis as per the SEBI (LODR) 

| requirements. 

| o Timely dissemination of the documents/ 

information under a separate section on the 

website. 

e  Web-links provided in annual corporate‘\ 

governance reports under Regulation 27(2) are ‘ 

accurate and specific which redirects to the | 

relevant document(s)/ section of the website. 

4 bisg’ualifi'ca'tip’n of Director: 5 = i 

None- of the Director of the Company are| Yes - 

disqualified under Section 164 of Companies Act, 

2013 as confirmed by the listed entity. 

2 (ymss 503, Suyojan Complex, Swastik Cross Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009 

(@) m_0 skesh. j@outlook 0 1916356354996 
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| have been examined w.rt.: 

Details_related to Subsidiaries of listed_entities Details related to Subsidiaries ol listeC_ENUMES 

o Identification of material subsidiary companies 

e Requirements with respect to disclosure of | 

material as well as other subsidiaries 

NA 

Preservation of Documents: 

The listed entity is preserving and maintaining 

records as prescribed under SEBI Regulations and 

disposal of records as per Policy of Preservation of 

Documents and Archival policy prescribed under 

SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 

Yes 

Performance Evaluation: 

The listed entity has conducted performance| 

evaluation of the Board, Independent Directors and 

the Committees at the start of every financial year as 

prescribed in SEBI Regulations. 

Yes 

Related Party Transactions: 

e The listed entity has obtained prior approval of 

Audit Committee for all Related party 

transactions. 

+ Incase no prior approval obtained, the listed 

enfity shall provide detailed reasons along with 

confirmation whether the transactions were | 

subsequently approved/ratified/rejected by the 

Audit committee. 

Yes 

Disclosure of events or information: 

The listed entity has provided all the required 

disclosure(s) ‘under Regulation 30 along with 

Schedule 11l of SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 within 

the time limits prescribed thereunder. 

Yes 

Except as mentioned in | 

Table (a) of the said report 

10. Prohibition of Insider Trading: 

Yes 
1 

(drhss 503, Suyojon Complex, Swostk Cross Road, Novr 
2 1 (@FLsinukesh.j@outlook o 

al ngpura, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009
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The listed entity is in compliance with Regulation 

3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) | 

Regulations, 2015. 

11. | Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if any: 

The Exchange has taken 
No Actions taken against the listed entity/ its | No | certain action through SOP | 

promoters/ directors/ subsidiaries either by SEBI or Fine for delay in filings as 

by Stock Exchanges (including under the Standard | mentioned in Table (a) of 

Operating Procedures issued by SEBI through ; the said report. 

various circulars) under SEBI Regulations and 

circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder. 

12. | Additional Non-compliances, if any: Yes o 

No additional non-compliance observed for any 

SEBI regulation/circular/guidance note etc. 

Compliances related to resignation of statutory auditors from listed entities and their material 

subsidiaries as per SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 18th October, 2019: 

Sr. Particulars 3 Complia;;:é Ofil;s;rvéfiorr;;/ir 

No. i Status Remarks by | 

(Ves/No/ | PCS* | 
NA) 

Compliances with the following conditions while appointing/re-appointing an auditor 

I If the auditor has resigried within 45 days from the s e 

end of a quarter of a financial year, the auditor 

before such resignation, has issued the limited 

review/ audit report for such quarter; or 

11 If the auditor has resigned after 45 days from the 

end of a quarter of a financial year, the auditor | NA | There is no appointment 
| 

before such resignation, has issued the limited and resignation of Auditor 

" revieW/ audit report for such quarter as well as the during the period under 

next quarter; or | review. 

f the auditor has signed the limited review/ audit | 
report for the first three quarters of a financial | 

year, the auditor before such resignation, has 

issued the limited review/ audit report for the last 

quarter of such financial year as well as the audit 

eport for such financial year. 

Addiéss| 503, Suyojan Complex, Swastik Cross Road, Navrangpura, Abmedabad, Gujarat-380009 
€ (@) csmukesh j@out com U +9163563549¢
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2. | Other conditions relating to resignation of statutory auditor 

Reporting of concerns by Auditor with fggpect to the 

listed entity/its material subsidiary to the Audit | NA There is no appointment 

Committee and resignation of Auditor 

during the period under 

I. In case of any concern with the management of review. 

the listed entity/material subsidiary such as non- 

| availability of information / non-cooperation by 

the management which has hampered the audit | 

process, the auditor has approached the Chairman | 

of the Audit Committee of the listed entity and the | 

Audit Committee shall receive such concern 

directly and immediately without specifically 

waiting for the quarterly Audit Committee 

meetings. 7 

. In case the auditor proposes to resign, all concerns 

with respect to the proposed resignation, along 

with relevant documents has been brought to the 

notice of the Audit Committee. In cases where the 

proposed resignation is due to non-receipt of 

information / explanation from the company, the 

auditor has informed the Audit Committee the 

details of information/explanation sought and not 

provided by the management, as applicable. 

11I. The Audit’'Committee / Board of Directors, as the 

case may be, deliberated on the matter on receipt 

of 'such information from the auditor relating to 
the proposal to resign as mentioned above and 

communicate its views to the management and | 

the auditor. | 

3. | The listed entity / its material subsidiary has There is no resignation of | 
obtained information  from the Auditor upon | NA Auditor during the period | 

resignation, in the format as specified in Annexure- under review. 

A in SEBI Circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/114/2019 dated 

18th October, 2019. 

2t o @heamukesh @outlook.com U +9163563 
Address ~503, Suyojan €omplex, Swastik Cross Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujorat-380009 

51



MUKESH J & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

Firm No. $2021GJ796900 

Assumptions & Limitation of scope and Review: 

Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and information 

furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 

Our responsibility is to certify based upon our examination of relevant documents and information. 

This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records and Books of Accounts 

of the listed entity. 

This Report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of the SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to 

the future viability of the listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management 

has conducted the affairs of the listed entity. 

For Mukesh J & Associates 

Practicing Company Secretaries 

'firpb}iqtor 
[ e iy 

CS. No. 29793 / 
_;Pf313331\ 

Review Certificate No.: 2874/2023 
"UDIN: AD29793F000496721 

Date: 30/05/2024 
Place: Ahmedabad 

Address -503, Suyojan Complex, Swastik Cross Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009 

(@) com sutlook.com B +916356354999 
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Annexure - III 
 

1. Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014: 
 
i. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the Median Remuneration of the 

Employees of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24; and 
 

ii. The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Financial Year. 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
Director/KMP 
and Designation 

Remuneration of 
Director/KMP for 
the FY 2023-24 (₹) 

% 
Increase/Decrease 
in remuneration in 
the financial year 
FY 2023-24 

Ration of 
remuneration of 
each director to 
the median 
remuneration of 
Employees 

1 Rahul Belwalkar Rs. 70.55 Nil 48.69 

2 
Ashish 
Mahendrakar 

Rs. 15.52 Nil 10.71 

 

iii. Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in FY 2023-24:- __6__% 
 

iv. The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year 2023-24 
was ₹ _1.44 Lakhs__ compared to the previous year 2022-23 was ₹ 1.36 Lakhs. 

 
v. Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2024:- 66_ 

Employees 
 

vi. Comparison of average percentile increase in salary of employees other than the managerial 
personnel and the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration: 

 
Particulars % Change in remuneration 
Average increase in salary of employees 
(other than managerial personnel ) 

NIL 

Average increase in remuneration of 
managerial personnel (CFO & CS) 

NIL 

 
vii. Affirmation: 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
other employees is as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

 
2. Information as per rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration) Rules, 2014 

Employees drawing salary of ₹ 102 lakhs or above per annum: __NIL_____ 
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Annexure -IV 
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder] 

1. The Company’s CSR policy: 

The CSR Policy of the Company has been formulated and adopted in terms of Section 13 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the Rules made there under. The Company undertakes CSR 
activities specified in the CSR Policy which is in line with the Schedule VII to the Act. 

A gist of the Policy and the projects and programs that the Company can undertake under the CSR 
Policy is mentioned below:- 

• To promote education, including special education and employment enhancing vocation skills 
especially among children & women 

• To promote healthcare including preventive healthcare 

• To Eradicate hunger, Poverty and malnutrition 

• To improve Sanitation and develop Infrastructure facilities 

• To ensure environment sustainability 

• To reduce Social and Economic Inequalities 

• Slum area Development 

• Any other activity as enumerated in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and amended 
from time to time. 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee as on March 31, 2024: 

The CSR Policy of the Company has been formulated and adopted in terms of Section 13 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under. The Company undertakes CSR 
activities specified in the CSR Policy which is in line with the Schedule VII to the Act. 

Sr. 

No. 
Name of Director 

Designation/ 
Nature of 
Directorship 

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee held 
during their tenure in FY 
2023-24 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee 
attended during 
the year 

1. Mr. Jaykishan 
Dineshbhai Darji 

Chairperson 1 1 

2. Mr. Amit Kumar 
Bharti 

Member 1 1 

3. Ms. Shireen Mohd 
Haneef Khan 

Member 1 1 
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3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 
by the board: 

The CSR Policy of the Company has been formulated and adopted in terms of Section 13 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under. The Company undertakes CSR 
activities specified in the CSR Policy which is in line with the Schedule VII to the Act. 

www.securcredential.com 

4. Provide the executive summary along with web-Link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried 
out in pursuance of Sub rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable - Not Applicable 

(a) Average Net Profit of the company as per sub-section 5 of Section 135: ₹ 213.92 Lakhs 

(b) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sub-section 5 of Section 135 - ₹ 4.28 
Lakhs 

(c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years 
- NIL 

(d) Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any - NIL 

(e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b) + (c) – (d)] - ₹ 4.28 Lakhs 

5. (a) Amount spent on CSR projects (both ongoing project and other than ongoing project) -  ₹ 10.6 
Lakhs 

(b) Amount spent on administrative overheads - NIL  

(c) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable - NIL 

(d) Total Amount spent for the financial year [(a) + (b) + (c)] - ₹ 10.6 Lakhs  

(e) CSR Amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 

Total Amount 
Spent for the 
financial year  

(in ₹ ) 

Amount Unspent (in ₹ )   

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as per 
section 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under 
Schedule VII as per second proviso to section 135(5)  

Amount  Date of transfer  Name of Fund  Amount  
Date of 
transfer  

1.  - 
Azad F 

10,60,000 29/03/2024 

 

(f) Excess Amount for set-off, if any: 

Sr.  Particulars  
Amount 

(₹in Lakhs)  

i Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 4.28 

ii Total amount spent for the Financial Year 10.60 

iii Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 6.32 
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iv Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the 
previous financial years, if any 

0.58 

v Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 6.9 

 
6. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable 

Sr.  

No. 

Preceding  

Financial 
year 

Amount 

transferred 
to Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under sub 
section  (6) 
of 

Section 135 

(in ₹) 

Balance 

Amount in 

Unspent CSR 
Account 
under sub 
section (6) of 
section 135 

(in Rs) 

Amount 
spent  in 
the 

Financial 

Year (in ₹) 

Amount 
transferred to 
a  fund  

specified 
under  

Schedule VII 
as  

per Second 
proviso to 
Sub section 
(5) of section 
135, if  

any 

Amount 

remaining 
to be spent 
in 
succeeding 
financial 
years.(In ₹) 

Deficiency, 
If any 

Amount  

(in Rs)  

Date of 
transfer  

 

1 - NIL - - - - - 

 
7. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social Responsibility 

amount spent in the financial year: No 
 

8. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend 2 (two) per cent of the average net profit 
as per section 135(5) of the Act : Not applicable 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
For SecUR Credentials Limited 
 

   Sd/- 
ASHISH RAMESH MAHENDRAKAR 
DIRECTOR 
DIN: 03584695 
 
Date : March 12, 2026 
Place : Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE-V  

Corporate Governance Report 

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 31, 
2024 in terms of Regulation 34(3) read with schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulation”). 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY 

Transparency and Accountability are the two basic tenets of Corporate Governance. We, SecUR 
Credentials Limited (“the Company”) ensure transparency which ensures strong and balanced 
economic development. The Company also ensures that the interests of all shareholders are 
safeguarded. We ensure that all shareholders fully exercise their rights and that the Company fully 
recognizes their rights. The Company believes that good Corporate Governance is a continuous 
process and strives to improve the Corporate Governance practices to meet shareholder’s 
expectation. 

The Company aims at not only its own growth but also maximization of benefits to the shareholders, 
employees, customers, government, stakeholders and also the general public at large. For this 
purpose, the Company continuously strives to improve its level of overall efficiency through good 
corporate governance, which envisages transparency, professionalism and accountability in all its 
operations. 
 
We are committed to good corporate governance and its adherence to the best practices of true 
spirits at all times. 

The Company’s governance framework is based on the following Principles: 

• Appropriate composition and size of the Board, with each member bringing in expertise in their 
respective domains; 

• Availability of information to the members of the Board and Board Committees to enable them 
discharge their fiduciary duties. 

• Timely disclosure of material operational and financial information to the stakeholders. 
• Systems and processes in place for internal control; and 
• Proper business conduct by the Board, senior management and Employees 

A report on compliance of corporate governance as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India in chapter IV read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulation is given below: - 

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE 

The Corporate Governance structure at “SecUR Credentials Limited” is as follows: 

Board of Directors 

The Board is entrusted with the ultimate responsibility of the management, general affairs, directions 
and performance of the Company. As its primary role is fiduciary in nature, the Board provides 
leadership, strategic guidance, objective and independent view to the Company’s management while 
discharging its responsibilities, thus ensuring that the management adheres to ethics, transparency 
and disclosure. 

Composition of the Board 

The Board has a good mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors including Independent Directors. 
As on March 31, 2024, the Board comprises of Managing Director, Five Independent Non- Executive 
Directors, one Woman Non- Executive Director and one Executive director. The composition of the 
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Board represents an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience in their respective 
fields. 
 
Matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors 

The Board of the Company comprises qualified members with the required skills, competence and 
expertise for effective contribution to the Board and its Committee. The Board members are 
committed to ensure that the Company is in compliance with the highest standards of Corporate 
Governance. 

In compliance with SEBI Listing Regulations as amended, the specific areas of focus or expertise of 
individual Directors have been highlighted in the table below: 
 

Name of the Director 

Core skills/expertise/competencies of the Directors  

Management 
operations 

Finance 
Strategy & 
Planning 

Leadership 
Governance 
& 
Compliance 

Amit Kumar Bharti - -   ✓   ✓   ✓ 

Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan    ✓ -   ✓ -    ✓ 

Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar     ✓    ✓    ✓    ✓    ✓ 

Rahul Belwalkar ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Prateek Jain - - - - - 

Mithun Lalitkumar Kothari ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 

Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ ✓ 
 

None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies. None of the 
Independent Directors serves as an independent director on more than seven listed entities. Further none 
of them is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five committees across all 
the public companies in which he is a Director. 
 

Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors confirm that 
in their opinion, the Independent Directors meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under 
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are independent of the management. In 
compliance with Rule 6(1) and (2) of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Fifth 
Amendment Rules, 2019, all Independent Directors have confirmed their respective registrations in the 
Independent Directors Data bank. 

The Composition of the Board of Directors and the number of Directorships and Committee 
positions held by them as on March 31, 2024 are as under: 

Name of the 
Director 

Category 
No. of other 
Directorship* 

No. of other 
board 
Committees** 

No.  of  
Equity 
Shares hold 

Member
ship 

Chairmans
hip 

 

Rahul Suresh 
Belwalkar 

Executive -  
Independent 
Director 

- - - 84,78,016 
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Amit Kumar Bharti Non-Executive -  
Independent 
Director 

- - - 0 

Mithun Lalitkumar 
Kothari 

Non-Executive -  
Independent 
Director 

- - - 0 

Shireen Mohd 
Haneef Khan 

Non-Executive -  
Independent 
Director 

- - - 0 

Ashish Ramesh 
Mahendrakar 

Executive -  
Director 

- - - 0 

Prateek Jain Non-Executive -  
Independent 
Director 

- - - 0 

Jaykishan Darji Non-Executive -  
Independent 
Director 

- - - 0 

 

*Directorships held by the Directors as mentioned above, exclude directorships held in private 
companies, foreign companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

**In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Membership/ Chairmanships of 
two Committees viz. Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of all Public Limited 
Companies (listed and unlisted) have been considered. 

Names of the listed entity (ies) where the Director of the Company is a director in those listed entity 
(ies) and the Category of directorship. 

Name of the Director Directorship in other listed 
entities 

Category 

Rahul Suresh Belwalkar - - 

Amit Kumar Bharti - - 

Mithun Lalitkumar Kothari - - 

Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan - - 

Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar - - 

Prateek Jain - - 

Jaykishan Darji - - 
 

Board Meetings 

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on business strategies/policies and review 
the financial performance of the company. The notice of Board Meeting is given well in advance to all 
the Directors. The agenda of the Board Meetings is set by the Company Secretary in consultation with 
the Chairman & Managing Director of the Company. The agenda for the Board Meetings includes 
detailed notes on the items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed 
decision. 

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, Fifteen (15) Board Meetings were held and the gap 
between two meetings did not exceed one hundred twenty days. 

The Board meetings were held on the following dates:- 
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23.05.2023, 02.06.2023, 06.06.2023, 27.06.2023, 30.06.2023, 27.07.2023, 21.08.2023, 04.09.2023, 
02.10.2023, 01.02.2024, 02.02.2024, 06.02.2024, 27.02.2024, 29.02.2024 and 05.03.2024. 
 
The details of attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and at the Last Annual General 
Meeting are as under:  
 

Name of the Director 
  

Number of board 
Meeting held during 
their tenure in year 
2023-2024 

Number of Board 
meetings 
attended  during 
the year 2023-
2024  

Whether attended last AGM 
held on 30/09/2023 

Rahul Suresh Belwalkar 15 15 Yes 

Amit Kumar Bharti 15 15 Yes 

Mithun Lalitkumar Kothari 15 0 No 

Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan 15 15 Yes 

Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 15 2  No (Attended but as a CFO) 

Prateek Jain 15 15 Yes 

Jaykishan Darji 15 15 Yes 

 
Information Given to the Board 
 
The Company provides the information as set out in Regulation 17 read with Part A of Schedule II of 
Listing Regulation to the Board and the Board Committees to the extent it is applicable and relevant. 
Such information is submitted either as part of the agenda papers in advance of the respective 
meetings or by way of presentations and discussions during the meeting. 

Post Meeting Mechanism 
The important decision taken at the Board/Board Committee meetings are communicated to the 
concerned departments/ divisions. 

Board Support 
The Company Secretary Attends Board/Board Committee meetings and advises on Compliances with 
applicable laws and governance. 

Independent Directors 
The Non-Executive Independent Directors fulfill the conditions of independence specified in Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of the Listing Regulation. 

Limit on the number of Directorship 
In compliance with the Listing Regulations, Directors of the Company do not serve as Independent 
Director in more than seven Listed Companies or in case he is serving as a Whole time Director in any 
Listed Companies, does not hold such position in more than three Listed Companies. 

Maximum Tenure of Independent Directors 
In accordance with Section 149(11) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Current tenure of Independent 
Directors of the Company is for a term of maximum 5 consecutive years from the date of Board 
Meeting (BM). 

Independent Directors’ Meeting 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on March 25, 2024, inter alia, to 
discuss 
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• Reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the board of directors as a whole; 

• Reviewed the performance of the chairperson of the listed entity, taking into account the views 
of executive directors and non-executive directors; and 

• Accessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the management 
of the listed entity and the board of directors that is necessary for the board of directors to 
effectively and reasonably perform their duties. 

All the Independent Directors were present at the Meeting. 

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors 
A formal letter of appointment together with the Induction kit is provided to the Independent 
Directors, at the time of their appointment, setting out their role, functions, duties and 
responsibilities. The directors are familiarized with your Company’s business and operations and 
interactions are held between the directors and senior management of your Company. Directors are 
familiarized with the organizational set-up, functioning of various departments, internal control 
processes and relevant information pertaining to the Company. Apart from the above, periodic 
presentations are also made at the Board / Committee meetings to familiarize the Directors with the 
Company’s strategy, business performance, business environment, regulatory framework, operations 
review, risk management and other related matters. 

Service Contracts, Notice Period, Severance Fee 
Your Company does not enter into service contracts with the Executive Directors as they are 
appointed/reappointed with the approval of the shareholders for the period permissible under the 
applicable provisions of the Act, and/or SEBI Listing Regulations. Independent directors have been 
issued an appointment letter which prescribes that any Independent Director may resign from his 
office subject to reasonable written notice to the Board. 

GOVERNANCE CODES 
o Code of Business Conduct & Ethics 
The Company has adopted code of Business Conduct & Ethics (‘the Code”) which is applicable to the 
Board of Directors and Senior Management Team (One Level below the Board) of the Company. The 
Board of Directors and the members of Senior Management team are required to affirm semi-annual 
compliance of this code. The code requires Directors and Employees to act honestly, fairly, ethically 
and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional, courteous and respectful manner.  

o Conflict of Interest 
Each Director informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and the Committee positions 
he or she occupies in other Companies including Chairmanships and notifies changes during the year. 
The Members of the Board while discharging their duties, avoid conflict of interest in the decision 
making process. The members of the Board restrict themselves from any discussions and voting in 
transactions that they have concern or interest. 

o Insider Trading Code 
The SEBI has notified the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015 (“the PIT Regulations”) on January 15, 2015 effective from May 15, 2015 which has 
repealed the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. The Company has adopted a code 
of conduct to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders (‘the Code”) in accordance with the 
requirements of the PIT Regulations. The Code is applicable to the Promoters and Promoters Group, 
all Directors and such designated employees who are expected to have access to unpublished price 
sensitive information relating to the Company. The Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for 
monitoring adherence to the said regulations. In compliance with the aforesaid PIT Regulations, the 
Company has also formulated the Code of Practices and Procedures for fair disclosures of Unpublished 
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Price Sensitive Information. This code is displayed on the Company’s website viz. 
www.securcredential.com. 
  
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
The Board of Directors has constituted Board Committees to deal with specific areas and activities 
which concern the Company and requires a closer review. The Board Committees are formed with 
approval of the Board and function under their respective Charters. These Committees play an 
important role in the overall management of day to- day affairs and governance of the Company. The 
Board Committees meet at regular intervals and take necessary steps to perform its duties entrusted 
by the Board. The Minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review. 
The Board Committees can request special invitees to join the meeting, as appropriate. 

The Board currently has the following Committees: 

o AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The Company has an Audit Committee at the Board level with power and role that are in accordance 
with the SEBI Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013. The Audit Committee oversees the 
accounting, auditing and overall financial reporting process of the Company. The Audit Committee 
acts as a link between the Management, the Statutory Auditors, Internal Auditors and the Board of 
Directors to oversee the financial reporting process of the Company. The Committee is constituted 
and governed in line with the provisions of Regulation 18 of SEBI Listing Regulations, read with Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Term of Reference 
The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the Company’s 
internal controls and financial reporting process and, inter alia, performs the following functions: 

• Overseeing the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 

• Recommending to the Board, the appointment, reappointment and, if required, the replacement 
or removal of the statutory auditor and the fixation of audit fees; 

• Approving payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors; 

• Approving initial or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related 
parties; 

• Scrutinizing inter-corporate loans and investments 
• Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary; 
• Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters 
• Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the 

Board for approval, with particular reference to; 
• Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 

Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013; 
• changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices along with reasons for the same;  
• major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management; 
• significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
• compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements; • disclosure 

of any related party transactions; and • Qualifications in the audit report. 
• Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the 

board for approval; 
• Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an 

issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for 
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/ notice and the report 
submitted by the  monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights 
issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter; 
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• Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, and adequacy 
of the internal control systems; 

• Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal 
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting 
structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

• Discussing with the internal auditors any significant findings and follow up there on; 
• Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where 

there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature 
and reporting the matter to the  
Board; 

• Discussing with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope 
of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

• Looking into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of nonpayment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

• Reviewing the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing; 
• Approving the appointment of the Chief Financial Officer (i.e. the whole time finance director or 

any other person heading the finance function) after assessing the qualifications, experience and 
background, etc., of the candidate; and Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the 
terms of reference of the Audit Committee or contained in the equity listing agreements as and 
when amended from time to time. 

Further, the Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following: 

• management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations; 
• statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), 

submitted by management; 
• management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors; and 
• internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and the appointment, removal and 

terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor. 

Composition, name of members and Chairperson 
The composition of the Audit Committee and the attendance of the members at the meetings held 
during the Financial Year 2023-24 are as under : 

The Audit Committee comprises of the following directors as on March 31, 2024 
 

1 Mr. Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji Chairperson Independent Director 

2 Mr. Amit Bharti Member Independent Director 

3 Ms. Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan Member Independent Director 

 
Meetings and Attendance 
The Audit Committee met 5 (five) times during the financial year 2023-24. The Committee met on 
23.05.2023, 11.08.2023, 14.11.2023, 21.11.2023 and 19.01.2024. The maximum gap between two 
Audit Committee Meetings was not more than 120 days. The necessary quorum was present for all 
meetings. The table below provides the attendance of the Audit Committee members: 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Directors 
No. of meetings held 
during the tenure 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

1 Mr. Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji 5 4 

2 Mr. Amit Bharti 5 4 
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3 Ms. Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan 5 4 

 
Internal Controls 
The Company continuously invests in strengthening its internal control and processes. The Audit 
Committee along with the CFO formulates a detailed plan to the Internal Auditors for the year, 
which is reviewed at the Audit Committee Meetings. The Internal Auditors attend the meetings of 
Audit committee at regular intervals and submit their recommendations to the Audit Committee 
and provide a road map for the future. 

o NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION/ COMPENSATION COMMITTEE 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been entrusted with role of formulating criteria 
for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence of the Directors as well as 
identifying persons who may be appointed at senior management levels and also devising a policy on 
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other senior employees. The Committee 
also monitors and administers the Employee Stock Option Scheme(s). 

Term of Reference 

The role of Nomination and Remuneration/ Compensation Committee is as follows: 

• Identify persons who are qualified to become directors and may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the Criteria laid down, recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every director’s performance; 

• Formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director and recommend to the board a policy relating to the remuneration for directors, 
KMPs and other employees; 

• Determine our Company’s policy on specific remuneration package for the Managing Director / 
Executive Director including pension rights; 

• Decide the salary, allowances, perquisites, bonuses, notice period, severance fees and increment 
of Executive Directors. 

• Define and implement the Performance Linked Incentive Scheme (including ESOP of the 
Company) and evaluate the performance and determine the amount of incentive of the Executive 
Directors for that purpose. 

• Decide the amount of Commission payable to the Whole Time Directors. Review and suggest 
revision of the total remuneration package of the Executive Directors keeping in view the 
performance of the Company, standards prevailing in the industry, statutory guidelines etc. 

• To formulate and administer the Employee Stock Option Scheme. 

 

Composition, name of members and Chairperson 
 

The Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and the attendance of the members 
at the meetings held during the Financial Year 2023-24 are as under: 

 
 
The Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of the following Directors as on March 31, 
2024 : 
 

1 Mr. Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji Chairperson Independent Director 

2 Mr. Amit Bharti Member Independent Director 

3 Ms. Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan Member Independent Director 
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Meetings and Attendance 
 

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 2 (two) times during the financial year 2023-24. The 
Committee met on 21.11.2023 and 19.01.2024 to deliberate on various matters. 

The table below provides the attendance of the Nomination & Remuneration members: 

Sr. No. Name of the Directors 
No. of meetings held 
during the tenure 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

1 Mr. Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji 2 2 

2 Mr. Amit Bharti 2 2 

3 Ms. Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan 2 2 
 

REMUNERATION 

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 
The Non-Executive Independent Directors are eligible for sitting fees and commission not exceeding 
the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The remuneration paid to Non-Executive 
Directors is decided by the board of directors’ subject to the overall approval of the members of the 
company. The Non-Executive Independent Directors do not have any material relationship or 
transaction with the company. 

Remuneration to Executive Directors 
All decisions relating to the appointment and remuneration of the Executive Directors were taken by 
the Board of Directors of the Company and in accordance with the shareholders’ approval wherever 
necessary. The Executive Director gets monthly salary from the Company. Salary payable to Executive 
Directors is being recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Compensation Committee 
and approved by the Board and the Shareholders of the Company.  

Remuneration of the Managerial Persons are within the limits approved by the Board and 
Shareholders. 

The remuneration is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review of achievements. 
Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other Staff members. 

The Remuneration to KMP, Senior Management and other staff will be determined by the Committee 
and recommended to the Board for approval. KMP, Senior Management shall be eligible for a monthly 
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee in 
accordance with the statutory provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under 
for the time being in force. 

Details of Remuneration paid to Directors for the year ended March 31, 2024 
 

Name 
Remunerati
on 
(₹ in lakhs) 

Commission 
(in ₹) 

 
Sitting Fees 
(in ₹) 

Notice period 
severance 
Fee  
(in ₹) 

Rahul Suresh Belwalkar 
Chairman & Managing Director 

70.55 -  - - 

Amit Kumar Bharti 
Independent Director 

- - 
 1.62  - 
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Mithun Lalitkumar Kothari 
Independent Director 

- - 
 - - 

Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan 
Independent Director 

- - 
 2.70 - 

Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
Executive Director 

15.52 
- 

 - 
- 

Prateek Jain  
Independent Director 

- - 
 - 

- 

Jaykishan Darji 
Independent Director 

- - 
 - 

- 

 

Performance Evaluation 

In terms of the requirement of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, the Board carried 
out the annual performance evaluation of the Board as a whole, Board Committees and the 
Directors. 

During the year, in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 
Board Evaluation cycle was completed by the Company internally which included the Evaluation of 
the Board as a whole, Board Committees and Directors. The exercise was led by the Independent 
Director of the Company. The Evaluation process focused on various aspects of the functioning of the 
Board and Committees such as composition of the Board and Committees, experience, performance 
of specific duties and obligations, governance issues etc. 

The results of the Evaluation were shared with the Board, Chairman of respective Committees and 
individual Directors. Based on the outcome of the Evaluation, the Board and Committees have agreed 
on an action to further improve the effectiveness and functioning of the Board and Committees. The 
Chairman of respective Board Committees also shared the results of evaluation with the respective 
Committee Members 

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board based on below 
criteria:  
a. Director’s preparedness prior to the meeting; 
b. Director’s willingness to devote time and effort to understand the Company and its business and 

readiness to participate in events outside the meeting room, such as site visits; 
c. Director’s ability to remain focused at a governance level in Board/ Committee meetings; 
d. Quality of Director’s contributions at Board/ Committee meetings; 
e. Proactive attitude of Directors in development of strategy and risk management of the Company; 
f. Director’s understanding about governance, regulatory, financial, fiduciary and ethical 

requirements of the Board/Committee; 
g. Director’s willingness to refresh his/ her knowledge and skills and up to date with the latest 

developments in areas such as corporate governance framework, financial reporting and the 
industry and market conditions; h. Convincing power of the director in presenting his/her views 
before board; 

h. Maintaining high standard of ethics and integrity. Further, the evaluation of the Chairman and the 
Executive Director was carried out by the Independent Directors. The Directors were satisfied with 
the evaluation results. 
 

Independent Directors: 

There were no pecuniary transactions between Company and Independent Directors of the Company 
except sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses for attending meetings of board and committees. 
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o SHAREHOLDER’S / INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee ensures quick redressal of the complaints of the stakeholders 
and oversees the process of share transfer. The Committee also monitors redressal of 
Shareholders’/Investors’ complaints/grievances viz. non-receipt of annual report, dividend payment, 
issue of duplicate share certificates, transmission of shares and other related complaints. In addition 
the Committee also monitors other issues including status of Dematerialization/ Rematerialisation of 
shares issued by the Company. 

Term of Reference 

The Committee looks into the matters of Shareholders/ Investors grievance along with other matters 
listed below: 

• Allotment, transfer of shares including transmission, splitting of shares, changing joint holding into 
single holding and vice versa, issue of duplicate shares in lieu of those torn, destroyed, lost or 
defaced or where the cases in the reverse for recording transfers have been fully utilized. 

• Issue of duplicate certificates and new certificates on split/ consolidation/ renewal, etc.; and 
Review the process and mechanism of redressal of Shareholders /Investors grievance and suggest 
measures of improving the system of redressal of Shareholders /Investors grievances. 

• Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and also review and take note 
of complaints directly received and resolved them. 

• Oversee the implementation and compliance of the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company for 
prevention of Insider Trading for Listed Companies as specified in the Securities & Exchange Board 
of India (Probation of insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

• Any other power specifically assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time 
by way of resolution passed by it in a duly conducted Meeting. 

• non-receipt of share certificate(s), non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of interest/ 
• Dividend warrants, non-receipt of annual report and any other grievance/complaints with 

Company or any officer of the Company arising out in discharge of his duties. 
• Carrying out any other function contained in the equity listing agreements as and when 
amended from time to time. 

Composition, Name of Members and Chairperson 
 

The composition of the Shareholder’s/Investors Grievance Committee and the attendance of the 
members at the meetings held during the Financial Year 2023-24 are as under :  

The Shareholder’s/Investors Grievance Committee comprises of the following directors as on March 
31, 2024- 

1 Mr. Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji Chairperson Independent Director 

2 Mr. Amit kumar Bharti Member Independent Director 

3 Ms. Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan Member Independent Director 

 
Meetings and Attendance 
The Shareholder’s/Investors Grievance Committee met 5 (Five) time during the financial year 2023-
24. The Committee met on 10.04.2023, 23.05.2023, 10.07.2023, 21.11.2023 and 19.01.2024 to 
deliberate on various matters. 

The table below provides the attendance of the Shareholder’s/Investors Grievance Committee 
members: 
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Sr. No. Name of the Directors 
No. of meetings held during the 
tenure 

No. of Meetings 
Attended 

1 Mr. Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji 5 5 

2 Mr. Amit Kumar Bharti 5 5 

3 Ms. Shireen Mohd Haneef 
Khan 

5 5 

 
Details of Shareholders’ Complaints Received, Solved and Pending as on March 31, 2024 
 
The Company expresses satisfaction with the Company’s performance in dealing with investor 
grievance. The Company has not received any complaints during the year. Hence there were no 
complaints outstanding as on March 31, 2024. The status of Investors’ Complaints as on March 31, 
2024, is as follows : 

No. of complaints as on April 1, 2024 0 

No. of complaints received during the Financial Year 2023-24 0 

No. of complaints resolved up to March 31, 2024 0 

No. of complaints pending as on March 31, 2024 0 

 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE 
 
In accordance with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has a Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR)Committee consisting of the following Members as on March 31, 2024: 
 

1 Mr. Amit Kumar Bharti Chairperson Independent Director 

2 Mr. Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji Member Independent Director 

3 Ms. Shireen Mohd Haneef Khan Member Independent Director 

 
(A) MEANS OF COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS 

 
Effective communication of information is an essential component of Corporate Governance. It is a 
process of sharing information, thoughts, ideas and plans to all stakeholders which promotes 
management-shareholder relations. The Company regularly interacts with shareholders through 
multiple channel of communication such as results announcements, meetings, annual report, and 
Company’s website. 

• The Unaudited quarterly and half yearly results are announced within Forty-Five days of the 
close of the quarter and half year respectively except for the quarter & half year ended on 
September 30, 2023. The audited annual results are announced within the time limit as given 
by the SEBI. 
The approved financial results are forthwith sent to the stock exchange and displayed on the 
Company’s website viz. www.securcredential.com 

 
• Managerial Discussion and Analysis forms part of the Annual Report, which is sent to the 

Shareholders of the Company. 
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(B) DETAILS OF LAST THREE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS AND SPECIAL RESOLUTION, IF ANY 

Particulars FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 

Day Tuesday Monday Saturday 

Date December 28,2021 September 19,2022 September 30, 2023 

Time  2.30 p.m. 10.00 a.m.  11:00 a.m. 

Venue  
Through Video 
Conferencing / Other 
Audio Visual Means 

Through Video Conferencing 
/ Other Audio Visual Means 

Through Video 
Conferencing / Other 
Audio Visual Means 

Special Resolution 
Passed  

05 

1. To ratify the 
appointment of M/S 
S.D. Mehta & Co. as 
Statutory Auditors of 
the company. 
2. To ratify 
increase in 
remuneration of Mr. 
Rahul Belwalkar, 
Managing Director of 
the company. 
3. Re-
appointment of Mr. 
Rahul Belwalkar as 
Managing Director of 
the company. 
4. Appointment 
of Ms. Shireen Mohd 
Haneef Khan as an 
Independent Director. 
5. To give 
approval for  
Related Party 
Transactions. 

05 

1. Re-Appointment of 
Mr. Amit Kumar Bharti as an 
Independent Director. 
2. Reclassification of 
status from promoters to 
public Shareholders. 
3. Regularisation of the 
appointment of Mr. Prateek 
Jain (DIN: 08611660) as a 
Non-Executive Independent 
Director of the company. 
4. Regularisation of the 
appointment of Mr. 
Jaykishan Dineshbhai Darji 
(DIN: 09663640) as a Non-
Executive. 
5. To give approval for 
Related Party Transactions 
Independent  
Director of the company. 

02 
 
1. Reclassification of 
status from promoters 
to public Shareholders. 
 
2. To give approval for 
Related Party 
Transactions 
 

 
(C) DETAILS OF RESOLUTIONS PASSED THROUGH POSTAL BALLOT DURING FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-

24 
 

During the year under review, no resolution was put through by Postal Ballot. Further, no special    
Resolution is being proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot. 

(D) GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

1 23rd  AGM date, Time and Venue 
Friday, April 3, 2026 at 11:00 AM through video conferencing 
(VC)/ Other Audio Visual means (OAVM 

2 Company Registration Details 
ROC-Mumbai  
CIN:- L74110MH2001PLC133050 
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3 Registered Office Mastermind 4, Royal Palms Estate, Office No. 428, 
Aarey  Milk Colony, Goregaon East, Mumbai – 400065. 

4 Financial year 01st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 

6 Record Date/Cut-off Date 
Friday, March 27, 2026 

7 Listing on Stock Exchange 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited & National Stock Exchange 
Limited  

8 Scrip Code 543625 

9 ISIN No. INE195Y01010 

10 Listing Fees 
The Company has paid Listing Fees for the year 2023-24 to BSE & 
NSE within due date.  

11 Payment of Depository Fees: 
Annual Custody/Issuer fee for the year 2023-24 has been paid by 
the Company to NSDL and CDSL on receipt of the invoices. 

12 Registrar and Transfer Agents: 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 
Datani Plaza, Andheri Kurla Road, Mumbai – 400072. 
Tel No:-044 - 2846 0390 
Fax No :-044 - 2846 0129 
E-mail- subhashdhingreja@skylinerta.com  
Web Site- www.skylinerta.com  

13 Compliance Officer 

The Company does not have a Company Secretary currently as 
on the date of this report. The Board of Directors is in the 
process of identifying and appointing a qualified Company 
Secretary in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and applicable rules made thereunder.The Company is 
taking necessary steps to fill the position at the earliest to ensure 
compliance with the applicable statutory requirements. 

 
E)  SHARE PRICE DATA 
 

The monthly high and low prices and volumes of shares of the Company at BSE Limited (BSE) for 
the year ended March 31, 2024 are as under: 
 

 
Month 

NSE Share 
Price 

NSE Nifty BSE  BSE SENSEX 

HIGH LOW High Low HIGH Low High Low 

April 
2023 

27.85 21.55 18089 17313 27.70 21.95 61209 59204 

May 
2023 

28.10 23.00 18662 18042 
28.15 23.00 63036 60425 

June 
2023 

25.60 22.50 19202 18465 
25.80 22.35 64768   62359 
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July 
2023 

23.50 19.20 19992 19234 
23.50 19.00 67619 64836 

August 
2023 

20.50 16.15 19796 19224 
20.50 16.20 66592   64182 

Septem
ber 
2023 

20.80 15.60 20222 19256 21.09 15.84 67927 65565 

October 
2023 

22.25 15.90 19850 18838 22.20 15.96 66659 63093 

Novemb
er 2023 

22.00 17.60 20159 18974 23.00 17.75 67070 63550 

Decemb
er 2023 

24.50 18.20 21801 20184 24.25 18.52 72484 67149 

January 
2024 

25.40 19.10 22124 21137 25.43 19.35 73428 69128 

Februar
y 2024 

23.70 18.25 22298 21530 23.37 18.25 73414 70810 

March 
2024 

20.80 15.95 22527 21710 20.90 16.00 74245 71674 

 

(F) SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 
 

Trading in equity shares of the Company through recognized Stock Exchanges can be done only in 
dematerialized form. As per Regulation 40 of the Listing Regulations, except in case of 
transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not 
be processed unless the securities are held in demat form with a depository. 

In compliance of the provisions of Listing Regulations, the share transfer system of the Company 
is audited every six months by a Practicing Company Secretary and a certificate to that effect is 
issued by him/ her. 

(G) NOMINATION  
 

Nomination facility in respect of shares held in electronic form is available with the Depository 
Participants as per the byelaws and business rules applicable to NSDL and CDSL. Nomination form 
can be obtained from the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent i.e. Skyline Financial Services 
Private Limited. 

(H) SHARE HOLDING PATTERN AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 

Sr No. Category Number of Shares 
held 

% of Shareholding 

1 Promoters 0 0 

2 Promoters-Group  0 0 

3 Resident  3,46,77,489 84.45 

4 Trusts  25000 0.06 

5 NRI 2,41,091 0.59 

6 Corporate Body  35,55,488 8.66 

7 Clearing Members  0 0 
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8 FPI 0 0 

9 Alternative Investment Fund  0 0 

10 HUF 1777028 4.33 

11 Firms  786664 1.92 

Grand Total   41062760 100 

 
(I) DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES 

The Shares of the company were dematerialized with effect from 13.11.2017. The National 
Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository Services (India) Limited were the depository 
of the shares of the company. Under SEBI Circular the Company’ shares are in compulsory demat 
segment for the trading and to do any transaction of shares. 

  
 The Company’s shares are being traded in the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and National 
Stock Exchange Limited (NSE) under ISIN- INE195Y01010 

  Bifurcation of Shares held in physical and demat form as on March 31, 2024: 

Particulars  Numbers of Shares  % of Shares 

1. Physical Segment  3 0 

1. Demat Segment: 0 0 

A. NSDL  68,14,485 16.6 

A. CDSL  3,42,48,272 83.4 

Total (1) + (2)  4,10,62,760 100 

 
 
(J) ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE AND CONTACT PERSONS FOR INVESTOR’S QUERIES 

 
In order to facilitate quick redressal of the grievances/ queries, the Investors and Shareholders 
may contact the Company Secretary at the under mentioned registered office address for any 
assistance: 

Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
Executive Director& Chief Financial Officer 
SecUR Credentials Limited 
Mastermind 4, Royal Palms Estate, Office No. 428, 
Aarey  Milk Colony, Goregaon East, Mumbai – 400065. 
Tel No. - 022-69047100 
E-mail- complianceofficer@secur.co.in 
 
*Kindly Note: The Company does not have a Company Secretary currently as on the date of this 
report. The Board of Directors is in the process of identifying and appointing a qualified Company 
Secretary in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules made 
thereunder. Also, the Company is taking necessary steps to fill the position at the earliest to ensure 
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compliance with the applicable statutory requirements. Hence, the responsibility for Investor Queries 
is given to Mr.  Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar accordingly. 

 

Besides, investors are also requested to make any correspondence with the Share Transfer Agents, 
whose particulars are furnished as under: 

Skyline Financial Services Private Limited 
505, A - Wing, Dattani Plaza, 
Andheri Kurla Road, Safeed Pool, 
Mumbai - 400072. 

(L) BSE and NSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (the ‘Listing Centre’) 
BSE and NSE Listing Centre is a web-based application designed for corporate. All periodical 
compliance filings like share holding pattern, corporate governance report, statement of investor 
complaints, among others are also filed electronically on the Listing Centre 

(M) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES) 
The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web-based complaints redress system. The 
salient features of this system are centralized database of all complaints by concerned companies 
and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint and its current status. 

(N) Total fees for all services paid by the Company, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor 
and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part 
The fees paid to the Statutory Auditors by the Company are disclosed in the Audited Financial 

Statements (FY 2023-24) of the Company. 

(O) Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
 

Sr. No.  Particulars No. 

1 Number of complaints on Sexual harassment received during the year 0 

2 Number of Complaints disposed-off during the year 0 

3 Number of cases pending as on end of the financial year 0 

 
(P) Outstanding GDR / ADR / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely 

impact on equity as of 31 March, 2024 
Your Company does not have outstanding GDR / ADR / Warrants as of 31 March, 2024. 

(Q) Details of recommendation of Committees of the Board which were not accepted by the Board 
  Nil. All recommendations of the Committees of the Board were duly accepted by the Board. 

(R) Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account / unclaimed suspense account 

Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 
at the beginning of the year NIL 

Number of shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from suspense 
account during the year NIL 

Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense account 
during the year NIL 
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Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying 
at the end of the year NIL 

 
(S) Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities: 

No agreements are executed which are covered under clause 5A of paragraph A of Part A of 
Schedule III of Listing Regulations and hence disclosure is not required. 

(T) Other Disclosures 

• Disclosures on Materially Significant Related Party Transactions that may have potential 
conflict with the interests of the Company 

During the year, the Company did not enter into any contract/ arrangement / transaction with 
related parties, which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the 
Company on materiality of related party transactions. None of the transactions with any of 
related parties were in conflict with the Company’s interest. 

As required under Regulation 23 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has a policy 
on Related Party Transactions. The abridged policy on Related Party Transactions is available on 
the Company’s website at www.securcredential.com. 

• Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on the Company 
by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital 
markets, during the last three years    

There has been some non-compliance, penalties or strictures imposed on your Company by the 
Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority, on any matter relating to the capital 
markets during the last three years which are provided below: 

Particulars FY 2021-22 
 

FY 2022-23 
 

FY 2023-24 

Non- 
Compliance  

Delay in Submission of 
Financial Results for Half 
year ended on September 
30, 2021. 

The Resigning Auditor has 
not provided Limited  
Review report for the half 
year ended September 30, 
2021 

1. 
2. 

Delay in Submission of 
Financial Results for 
half year ended on 
September 30, 2022. 

Omission in filing of 
Prior  
Intimation of Board 
Meeting held for fund 
raising. 

   1. Delay in Submission 
of Financial Results for 
half year ended on 
September 30, 2023. 

  2. Delay in Submission 
of   Shareholding 
Pattern for          the 
Quarter ended 
September, 2023. 
 
  3.  Delay in Submission 
of  Corporate 
Governance   report for 
the quarter ended    
on 31st December, 2023. 
 
  4.  Non- filling of 
vacancy of   Company 
Secretary. 
 
  5.  Delay in submission 
of report under 
Regulation 24A for the 
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year ended 31st March, 
2023.  
    
   6. Non-Submission of   
  required documents or  
  clarification  with 
exchanges along with  
non-payment of 
processing fees. 
 
   7. Only 4 days 
Intimation           was 
given to Stock Exchange      
for board meeting for    
approval of Unaudited    
Financial results of the 
Company for the 
quarter and half year 
ended 30th September, 
2023. 
 
  8. Delay in submission 
of Related Party 
Transaction Report for 
the half year ended on 
March, 2023 and 
September, 2023. 
 
 
 9. Delay in Publishing 
financial result for the 
quarter and half year 
ended 30th September, 
2023 in Newspaper. 
 

Penalty  

Fine of Rs. 2,36,000/- 
including GST for year 
ended September 30, 2021. 

1. Not Applicable  

1. 
2. 

5900/-  each  by  both 
Exchanges. 

11800/-  each   
by both Exchanges. 

         1. Rs. 41,300/- each 
by both exchanges.  
 

2. Rs. 11,800/- each 
by both exchanges. 
 

3. Rs. 2,360/-. 
 

4. Rs. 10,620/- each 
by both exchanges. 
 
5. Rs. 18,880/-  
 
6. NA 
 
7. NIL 
 
8. NIL 
 

9. NIL 
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• Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy    

Pursuant to section 177(9) and (10) of Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the Listing 
Regulation, the Company has formulated Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy for Directors 
and Employees to report to the management about the unethical behavior, fraud or violation 
of Company’s code of conduct 

The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and 
Directors who use such mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the Chairperson 
of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. None of the personnel of the Company has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee. The Whistle Blower Policy is displayed on the 
Company’s website viz. www.securcredential.com. 

• Insider Trading   

In order to regulate trading in securities of the Company by the Directors and designated 
employees, your Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for trading in listed or proposed to 
be listed securities of your Company. Insider Trading Code prevents misuse of unpublished price 
sensitive information and it also provides for periodical disclosures and obtaining pre-clearance 
for trading in securities of your Company by the Directors, Designated Employees and 
Connected Persons of your Company. The Policy on Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider 
Trading has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.securcredential.com. 
 
 
 
 

• Disclosure on compliance with corporate governance requirements    

Your Company has complied with all the corporate governance requirements specified in Regulation 
17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, 
wherever applicable to your Company. 

• Details of Compliances with the Non-mandatory Corporate Governance requirements as 
prescribed under the SEBI Listing Regulations   

In addition to the mandatory requirements, the Company has also adopted the following non 
mandatory requirements as prescribed in Regulation 27 of the SEBI Listing Regulations 

a) The Board 

The Board is having Executive Chairman and doing his duties properly. 

b) Shareholders Rights 

We display our quarterly and half yearly results on our web site www.securcredential.com. We 
publish the voting results of shareholder meetings on our website www.secur.co.in and report the 
same to Stock Exchange in terms of Regulation 44 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
      
c) Modified opinion(s) in audit report 

 The Auditors have issued an un-qualified opinion on the financial statements of the Company  

d)  Reporting of internal auditor 
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The internal auditors of the Company reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and to the Chief 
Financial Officer. He has regular and exclusive meetings with the Audit Committee prior to reports of 
Internal Audit getting discussed with the Management Team. The internal auditors of the Company 
reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and to the Chief Financial Officer. He has regular and 
exclusive meetings with the Audit Committee prior to reports of Internal Audit getting discussed with 
the Management Team. 
 
e) Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar is leading the Company as a Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer 
of the Company. There is no separate post of Chairperson and Managing Director or Chief Executive 
Officer of the Company. 

• Certificate by Practicing Company Secretary 

The Company has received a certificate from “M/s. Praveen Tiwari & Associates” Practicing 
Company Secretary, confirming that none of the Directors of the Company have been debarred 
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of companies by the 
SEBI/Ministry of Corporate of Affairs or any such authority. 

• Disclosure of Commodity Price Risk and Commodity Hedging Activities 

 Your Company does not have commodity price risk hence no commodity hedging is done 

• Details of Utilization of Fund 

During the year, your Company has not raised any fund through preferential allotment or 
qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32(7A) SEBI Listing Regulations. 

• Details of Credit rating 

Company has not been rated by any credit rating agency. 

• Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report 

The Company has complied with all the requirements of Corporate Governance Report 

• Regulation 34(3) compliance of SEBI Listing Regulations 

Your Company is in compliance with the disclosures required to be made under this report in 
accordance with the Act and regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V to the SEBI Listing 
Regulations 

• Company Registration details 

Your Company is registered in the State of Maharashtra, India. The Corporate Identity Number 
(CIN) allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is 
L74110MH2001PLC133050 

• CEO/CFO Certification 

The requirement with respect to certification of financial statement by CEO/CFO is complied 
with as per provisions of the Corporate Governance, which is annexed. 
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• Report On Corporate Governance 

This Corporate Governance Report forms part of the Annual Report. The Company is in full 
compliance with all the mandatory requirements of Corporate Governance as specified in 
Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 

On behalf of the Board of Directors  
SecUR Credentials Limited 
 
 
Sd/- 
Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
Executive Director 
DIN: 03584695 

 
Date : 12.03.2026 
Place : Mumbai 
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   ANNEXURE-VI 

CFO COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE 

I, Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar, Chief Financial Officer of the Company certify that: 

a) We have reviewed the financial statements including the cash flow statement for the 
year ended 31st March, 2024 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

i. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material 
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;; 

ii. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and 
are in compliance with Indian Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company 
during the year ended 31st March, 2024 are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company’s 
code of conduct. 

c) We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Executive 
Committee have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the 
Company. 

d) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the 
Auditors and Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, 
if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or proposed to take to rectify 
these deficiencies; 

e) There has not been any significant change in internal control over financial reporting 
during the year under reference; 

f) There has not been any significant change in accounting policies during the year 
requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial statements; 

g) We are not aware of any instance during the year of significant fraud with involvement 
therein of the management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s 
internal control system over financial reporting. 

 
 
Sd/- 
Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
Chief Financial Officer  
 
Date: 12/03/2026 
Place: Mumbai 
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ANNEXURE-VII 

DECLARATION REGARDING CODE OF CONDUCT 

We, hereby confirm that, all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed 
compliance with SecUR Credentials Limited Code of Business conduct and Ethics for the year 
ended March 31, 2024. 

 
For and on Behalf of the Board  
SecUR Credentials Limited 
 
Sd/- 
Ashish Ramesh Mahendrakar 
Executive Director  
DIN : 03584695 
 
Date : 12/03/2026 
Place : Mumbai 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(2)(e) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015) 

 
1. Industry Structure and Developments 

 
The background screening and verification industry has witnessed significant growth in recent years 
driven by increasing regulatory requirements, digital transformation, and growing emphasis on risk 
management by organizations. Companies across sectors such as IT, banking, financial services, 
manufacturing, healthcare, and e-commerce are increasingly adopting background verification services 
to ensure compliance, mitigate fraud risks, and enhance operational transparency. 
 
India’s growing formal employment ecosystem, increasing outsourcing of compliance-related 
processes, and rising cross-border hiring are further contributing to the growth of the background 
verification industry. Additionally, advancements in Artificial Intelligence (AI), Robotic Process 
Automation (RPA), and digital verification tools are transforming the industry by improving accuracy, 
speed, and scalability of verification processes. 
 
Financial institutions and banks are also increasingly using verification services for loan processing, 
KYC validation, and fraud detection, creating new opportunities for companies operating in this 
segment. 
 
SecUR Credentials Limited, being one of the leading background verification companies in India and 
the first listed company in this industry, continues to leverage its technological capabilities and industry 
experience to strengthen its market position. 
 

2. Opportunities and Threats 
 
Opportunities 
 
The Company operates in a niche but rapidly growing industry with multiple growth drivers: 
 Rising demand for employee background verification across industries. 
 Increasing focus on risk management and compliance by corporates. 
 Growth in digital hiring and remote workforce, requiring robust verification processes. 
 Expansion of services such as vendor verification, KYC verification, and loan verification. 
 Increasing adoption of AI-based automation and analytics to enhance operational efficiency. 

 
The Company has also introduced loan verification services for banks, which is expected to contribute 
significantly to revenue growth in the coming years. 
 
Threats 
 
Despite strong growth prospects, the industry faces certain challenges: 
 Increasing competition from new technology-driven verification service providers. 
 Data privacy and regulatory compliance requirements. 
 Dependence on external databases and information sources for verification processes. 
 Cybersecurity risks due to increasing digitalization. 
 Fluctuations in hiring activity across industries due to economic cycles. 
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The Company continues to address these challenges by strengthening its technological infrastructure 
and maintaining robust compliance systems. 
 

3. Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance 
 
The Company primarily operates in the background screening and verification services segment, which 
includes: 
 Employee Background Verification 
 Vendor and Supplier Verification 
 KYC Verification Services 
 Loan Verification Services for Banks 
 Due Diligence and Risk Screening Services 

 
During the financial year under review, the Company focused on expanding its service offerings and 
on boarding new clients across various sectors including information technology, banking, and financial 
services. 
 
The launch of loan verification services for banks represents a strategic expansion into the financial 
services verification segment and is expected to contribute significantly to future growth. 
 

4. Overview of Financial Performance 
 
During the financial year ended 31st March 2024, the performance of the Company was as follows: 
 
Key Financial Highlights: 
 

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 

Revenue from Operations ₹ 51.35 crore ₹ 28.12 crore 

Total Expenditure ₹ 40.79 crore ₹ 40.69 crore 

Profit/(Loss) Before Tax ₹ 10.55 crore ₹ (6.83 crore) 

Profit/(Loss) After Tax ₹ 7.78 crore ₹ (2.45 crore) 

 
The Company maintained revenue stability while significantly improving profitability through 
operational efficiencies and technology-driven automation of processes. 
 
The improved financial performance reflects the Company’s continued focus on cost optimization, 
productivity improvements, and enhanced service delivery. 
 

5. Outlook 
 
The outlook for the background verification industry remains positive due to the increasing importance 
of risk mitigation and compliance across industries. 
 
Key growth drivers for the Company include: 
 Rising adoption of digital verification solutions. 
 Expansion into banking and financial sector verification services. 
 Leveraging AI and automation technologies to scale operations. 
 Increasing demand for global verification services. 
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The Company intends to continue investing in technology, automation, and service diversification to 
enhance operational efficiency and strengthen its competitive advantage. 
 

6. Risks and Concerns 
 
The Company has identified various risks that could impact its operations and financial performance: 
 
 Operational Risk: Dependence on external information sources for verification processes. 
 Data Security Risk: Protection of sensitive client and employee data. 
 Regulatory Risk: Changes in data protection and privacy regulations. 
 Competition Risk: Increasing competition from domestic and international service providers. 
 Economic Risk: Slowdown in hiring activities impacting demand for verification services. 

 
The Company has implemented appropriate risk management frameworks and internal controls to 
mitigate these risks. 
 

7. Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy 
 
The Company has established adequate internal financial control systems commensurate with the size 
and nature of its operations. 
 
Internal controls ensure: 

 Accuracy and reliability of financial reporting 
 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations 
 Safeguarding of assets 
 Prevention and detection of fraud 

 
8. Discussion on Financial Performance with Respect to Operational Performance 

 
The financial performance of the Company during FY 2023-24 reflects: 

 Stable revenue generation from core verification services. 
 Improved profit margins due to operational efficiencies. 
 Increased adoption of technology and automation tools to enhance productivity. 
 Expansion of service offerings including loan verification services. 

 
These initiatives have enabled the Company to improve profitability despite relatively stable revenue 
growth. 
 

9. Human Resources 
 
Human capital continues to be a key strength of the Company. The Company focuses on building a 
skilled workforce with expertise in verification processes, risk management, and technology-enabled 
solutions. 
 
The Company promotes a culture of: 

 Continuous learning and professional development 
 Ethical business practices 
 Employee engagement and performance excellence 

 
Industrial relations remained cordial throughout the financial year. 
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10. Key Financial Ratios 
 

RATIO 2022-23 2023-24 
Debtors Turnover 1.30 0.79 
Inventory Turnover 0 0 
Interest Coverage Ratio 0.36 (0.42) 

Current Ratio 1.90 2.09 
Debt Equity Ratio 1.06 0.85 

Operating Profit Margin (%) 0 0 
Net Profit Margin (%) 0.16  (0.09) 

Return on Net Worth 0.30 (0.11) 

 
Pursuant to the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the details of significant changes (i.e., change of 25% or more as compared to the 
immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios are explained below:   
  
1. Debtors Turnover - The Debtors Turnover Ratio decreased from 1.30 in FY 2022–23 to 0.79 in FY 
2023–24. The decline is mainly attributable to an increase in trade receivables and relatively lower 
revenue realization during the year, resulting in a slower collection cycle. 
 
2. Interest Coverage Ratio - The Interest Coverage Ratio changed from 0.36 in FY 2022–23 to (0.42) 
in FY 2023–24. This decrease is primarily due to lower earnings before interest and tax during the year 
and higher finance costs, which resulted in reduced ability to cover interest obligations. 
 
3. Current Ratio - The Current Ratio increased from 1.90 in F.Y. 2022–23 to 2.09 in F.Y. 2023–24. 
The increase is mainly due to improvement in current assets and better management of short-term 
liabilities during the year, resulting in a stronger liquidity position of the Company. 
 
4. Debt–Equity Ratio - The Debt–Equity Ratio decreased from 1.06 in FY 2022–23 to 0.85 in FY 
2023–24. The reduction is primarily attributable to repayment/reduction of borrowings and 
improvement in the Company’s net worth, leading to a lower dependence on external debt. 
 
5. Net Profit Margin (%) - The Net Profit Margin decreased from 0.16 in FY 2022–23 to (0.09) in FY 
2023–24. The change is mainly due to loss incurred during the year, arising from increased operating 
expenses and finance costs as compared to the previous financial year. 
 
6. Return on Net Worth - Return on Net Worth declined from 0.30 in FY 2022–23 to (0.11) in FY 
2023–24. The decrease is attributable to the reduction in net profit during the financial year, which 
impacted the overall return generated on shareholders’ funds. 
 
The changes in the above financial ratios are mainly attributable to variations in the operational 
performance and financial position of the Company during the financial year. The Board of Directors 
is continuously reviewing the business operations and financial performance of the Company and is 
taking necessary and appropriate steps to improve operational efficiency, revenue generation, and 
overall financial performance. The Directors are making their best efforts to strengthen the Company’s 
business operations and improve its financial position in the coming financial years in compliance with 
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 

11. Cautionary Statement 
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Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objectives, 
projections, estimates, and expectations may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning 
of applicable laws and regulations. 
 
Actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied due to various factors including 
economic conditions, regulatory developments, competitive environment, and other risks beyond the 
Company’s control. 
 
By Order of the Board of Directors 
For SECUR CREDENTIALS LIMITED 
 
Sd/- 
ASHISH RAMESH MAHENDRAKAR 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
DIN: 03584695 
 
Date : 12.03.2026 
Place : Mumbai 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 
To the Members of, 
SecUR Credentials Limited 
 
1. Opinion  
 

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of SecUR Credentials Limited 
(the “Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 
material accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to 
as “the Financial Statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, Except for the possible effects of the matters described in the ‘Basis for 
Qualified Opinion’  section of our report, the aforesaid  Financial Statements give the 
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rule, 
2016, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its profit, total comprehensive 
income and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 
Basis of Qualified Opinion 
 
1. We draw attention to the Note - 12 of the financial statements, which discloses a 

debit balance of Rs. 205.09 Lakhs in the director’s ledger account, representing an 
amount receivable from the director. 
 
The management has indicated that this balance pertains to payments made to the 
director for expenses incurred on behalf of the company. However, in the absence of 
supporting documentation such as invoices or vouchers, these expenses have not 
been recorded in the books of account. 
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In accordance with Ind AS 37, recognition of such amounts requires sufficient and 
appropriate evidence. The absence of such evidence gives rise to uncertainty 
regarding the existence and recoverability of the balance. 

Furthermore, as this constitutes a related party transaction under Section 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the requisite disclosures under Section 134(3)(n) and Ind AS 24 
are applicable. 

Our audit procedures to verify the existence and recoverability of this balance were 
limited due to lack of documentary evidence. 

 
2. For the balance outstanding to the credit of the Statement of Profit and loss under 

the head "Unbilled Revenue", no Invoices have been raised by the company, till the 
date of issuance of this report and as such, the balance remains the same till date. In 
absence of relevant details, the balance amount of the said item could not be 
verified and thereby the compliance with Ind AS 115 – “Revenue from contract with 
customer” could not be verified. 
 

3. During the year, the company has not collected interest on the loans advanced and 
advances outstanding as at 31st March, 2024. 
 

4. The reconciliation and verification of the statutory dues, outstanding and paid, could 
not be made as the relevant details have not been provided to us. 
 

5. The company had made an advance payment of Rs. 599.70 lakhs standing as opening 
balance since past many years as an advance for the purpose of acquiring an 
immovable property. However, till date, no acquisition has been made against such 
advance. 
 

6. Expected Credit Loss Provision has not been provided on the advances given by the 
company, and thereby, there is an inconsistency of Accounting Policies in the 
financial statements as well as non-compliance of Ind AS 109. 
 

7. Documentation regarding major expenditure have not been made available for the 
purpose of verification. Also, the third party confirmations for - trade payables, trade 
receivables, parties to whom advances have been made, parties from whom 
unsecured loans have been taken - have not been provided by the company and 
thereby the said balances are not confirmed to that extent. 
 

8. An amount of payment due to be paid against the purchase of property to the tune 
of Rs. 331.26 Lakhs reflecting under the head of Sundry Creditors , has been booked 
as income during the year by the company. 
 

9. The bifurcation of MSME and Non-MSME debtors and creditors has not been made 
by the company and to that extent the requirements of Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013 have not been complied with. 
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10. The company has received an Interim order from SEBI regarding certain transactions 

being alleged as fictitious transactions, in which Varanium Cloud Ltd, and its director 
Harshvardhan Samble are also involved. However, the said order has been 
challanged by the earstwhile director Shri Rahul Belwalkar in the Hon'le Bombay 
High court. However, the evidence for such challenged in the Hon’le Bombay High 
Court is not provided by the company. As regards to the transactions carried out 
with Varanium Cloud Ltd., there are credit notes issued to the said entity and 
thereby the sales made in the earlier financial year has been reversed to the tune of 
Rs. 235.76/- lakhs. The reason behind cancellation, as informed by the management 
is cancellation of an ongoing project. However, except the representation letter, we 
have not been provided with any other detail or correspondence of the said 
cancellation. 

 
11. A borrowing from HDFC Bank has been repaid during the year as seen from the 

books of accounts. However, "No due certificate" or bank statement or the relevant 
records have not been provided by the company to verify the correctness of the said 
closure of the borrowing. 
 

12. Expenses booked under the head Business promotion expenses, which have been 
paid through a credit card could not be verified due to non-availibility of statements 
and other relevant records. 

 
13.  We draw attention to the presentation of the financial statements, which mandates 

the disclosure requirement regarding the share-holding of equity share holder 
holding more than 5% and share-holding of promoters as per Schedule III of 
companies Act, 2013. The non-disclosure in the financial statements, in our opinion 
is a non-compliance of schedule – III. 

 
14.  We Draw attention to the presentation of the financial statements, which mandates 

the disclosure requirements regarding the related party details, related party 
transactions and balance outstanding at the balance sheet date as per Ind AS - 24. 
The management has informed us that they have not prepared and disclosed the 
comprehensive list of related parties, the nature and volume of transactions, and the 
balance outstanding as on the balance sheet date as required by the aforementioned 
standard. Consequently, we were unable to confirm that all required disclosures 
regarding related parties, related party transactions, and outstanding balances, 
which are essential for a proper understanding of the financial statements, have 
been made. In our opinion, the omission of these disclosures is material to the 
financial statements.  
 

15. The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan for its employees, which falls 
under the scope of Ind AS 19 on Employee Benefits. This standard requires the 
gratuity liability, being a Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO), to be measured using the 
Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method based on an actuarial valuation. Furthermore, 
the standard mandates extensive disclosures regarding the actuarial assumptions, 
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sensitivity analyses, movement in the DBO, and the net liability recognized in the 
financial statements. 

 
The management has not provided us with an actuarial valuation report for the 
gratuity plan as at the balance sheet date, nor have they included the required 
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements. Consequently, we were unable 
to determine whether any adjustment was necessary in respect of the gratuity 
liability and the related expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
We are, therefore, unable to quantify the extent of the understatement of the 
gratuity liability and the impact of the non-disclosure of the required information on 
the financial statements. In our opinion, the failure to recognize and disclose the 
defined benefit obligation in accordance with Ind AS - 19 is material to the financial 
statements. 
 

16. The preparation and presentation of financial statements require the Company to 
disclose material information relating to Contingent Liabilities, as mandated by Ind 
AS 37 on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets. The management 
failed to provide us with the necessary documentation and details regarding the 
following two material items, preventing us from fulfilling our audit responsibilities 
concerning the disclosure of contingent liabilities: 
a. Disputed Statutory Dues: The Company has various ongoing disputes with 

statutory authorities regarding taxes and other levies. However, the management 
did not provide a comprehensive schedule detailing the nature, amounts, 
probability of outflow, and management's estimate of the eventual financial 
effect for these disputed dues. Consequently, we were unable to verify and 
assess the adequacy of the disclosures related to material disputed liabilities. 

b. Bank Guarantee Commitments: The Company has obtained a Bank Guarantee 
from its bankers against certain commitments. Management has failed to provide 
us with the details of the amount, beneficiary, nature of the underlying 
commitment, and expiry date of this bank guarantee. As a result, the necessary 
disclosure regarding this financial commitment has been omitted from the notes 
to the financial statements. 

 
Due to the absence of the requisite details and supporting evidence, we were 
unable to determine the full impact of these two unquantified exposures on the 
Company’s financial position and the complete and accurate presentation of the 
notes on contingent liabilities and commitments. The non-disclosure of this 
information is considered a material non-compliance with the required Indian 
accounting standards. 

 
 
We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
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Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial Statements. 
 
 

Key Audit Matters 
 
Key Audit matters (‘KAM’) are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of 
most significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period.  These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 
Information, but does not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 
with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit 
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
 
 

2. Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in the section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and 
presentation of these  Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under 
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section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the respective Management and Board of 
Directors are responsible for assessing the ability of company to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 
so. 
 
The respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of company. 
 

 
3. Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Financial Statements 
 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the  Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
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opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system 
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management. 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a 
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the  Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the  Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the Financial Statements may be influenced. We 
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the  results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements. 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Company included in 
the Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial 
Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 
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4. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

i. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act,2015 we give in the “Annexure-A” a statement on the matters specified 
in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 
ii.  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:  

 
a.  We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the afore 
said Financial Statements; 

 
b.  In our opinion proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation 

of the afore said  Financial Statements have been kept by the Company so far as 
appears from our examination of those books. 

 
c.  The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive 

Income, Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flow dealt with 
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained 
for the purpose of preparation of the Financial Statements. 

 
d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Accounting 

Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. 

 
e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 

31, 2024, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164(2) of the Act.  
 

f.   With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to our separate report in “Annexure B”; Our report expresses an unmodified 
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting of those companies.  

 
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
  
 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

94



 
h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and accordance to the explanation 
given to us: 
 
i. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 

financial position. 
 
ii. The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative 

contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.  
 
iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.  
 

iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company, whose  Financial Statements 
have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or 
in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the 
Company or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
 
 (b) The respective Managements of the Company, whose  Financial Statements 
have been audited under the Act, have represented to us that, to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or 
in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 
entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or 
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

  
 (c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances performed by us on the Company whose 
Financial Statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our 
notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 
(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any 
material misstatement. 
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V. In Our Opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us 
Dividend declared and paid during the year by the company, is in compliance 
with Section 123 of the Act. 
 
VI. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used 

accounting software for maintaining its books of account which did not have 
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has not 
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the 
software. 

 
  
  

            For, S. D. Mehta & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 137193W) 
 
 

Date: 2nd August, 2025 
Place: Ahmedabad 

Shaishav D Mehta 
           Partner 

M.No.: 032891 
UDIN : 25157873BMHVHB9989 
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Annexure-A to Independent Auditors’ Report 
Referred to in Paragraph 4(i) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of our report of even date. 
 
To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the 
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, 
we state that: 

1. In respect of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 
a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and 
relevant details of right-of-use assets.  
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets.  

b. The Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets are physically verified 
by the management at regular intervals and in our opinion is reasonable having 
regard to the size of Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
verification a portion of the Property, Plant and Equipment has been physically 
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies have 
been noticed on such verification. 

c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the company does not possess any 
immovable property and as such this para is not applicable. 

d. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right 
of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 

e. The company doesn’t have any proceedings initiated or are pending against for 
holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 
1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made there. 

2.  
a. The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) 

of the Order is not applicable. 
b. On the basis of information and explanation given to us, we report that the company 

has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, 
from banks and financial institution on the basis of security of current assets. 
However, the Company has not been provided the details of filed quarterly returns 
or statements with such banks and financial institution, as such we are unable to 
comment upon whether filed quarterly returns or statements are in agreement with 
the unaudited books of accounts or not. 
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3. The According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 

examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made investment, 
provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured 
or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year. 

 
a. The company has granted loans to the parties during the year, details of the loan 

is stated as below. 
(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Loan Provided Subsidiary, JV & 
Associates 

Others 

A. Aggregate amount granted/ provided 
during the year 

- 205.09 

B. Balance outstanding as at balance 
sheet date in respect of above cases 

- 205.09 

  
During the year the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans, 
stood guarantee or provided security to any other entity. Accordingly, the 
requirement to report on these is not applicable to the Company. 
 

b. During the year, the investments made in subsidiaries and the terms and 
conditions of the grant of loans to other parties are not prejudicial to the 
Company’s interest. The company has not provided guarantees, given securities 
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships and others during the year. 
 

c. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has not been 
stipulated and thus unable to make specific comment on the regularity of 
repayment of principal & payment of interest. 
 

d. There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to 
parties, which are overdue for more than ninety days. 
 

e. There were no loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to parties which 
had fallen due during the year. 
 

f. The company has not granted loans/advances in nature of loans to promoters or 
related parties during the year which are repayable on demand or without 
specifying any terms or period of repayment. (Please refer to para 1 of Basis for 
qualified report of the audit report) 

 
4. The Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and section 186 of the 

Companies Act 2013 in respect of the loans granted, investments made and guarantees 
and securities provided, as applicable. 
 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
6. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government 
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activities carried out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company 

 
7. In respect of Statutory Dues: 

a. In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed 
statutory dues, including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value 
Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the 
appropriate authorities. 

 
There were undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty 
of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues 
in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable are as under: 

                                                                               (Rs. In Lakhs) 
Nature Outstanding for more than 

6 months 
Service Tax  11.71 
TDS Payable 108.04 
Professional Tax 2.23 
Interest on Dividend Tax 0.75 
Provident Fund Payable 0.69 
GST Payable 110.70 

 
 

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues of Goods and 
services tax, sales tax, Income tax and Cess which have not been deposited on 
account of any dispute as on 31.03.2024, the details of which have not been made 
available to us for verification and reporting.  

 
8. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 

surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the 
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
 

9.  
 
a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has 

delayed/defaulted in repayment of dues to financial institution, banks, government 
or dues towards debenture holders. However, the details of the same for the 
purpose of reporting has not been provided to us.  
 

b.  According to the information and explanation given to us, we are unable to 
comment upon whether the Company has been declared wilful defaulter or not by 
any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority. 

 
c. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

term loans have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. 
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d. On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised 

on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term 
purposes by the Company. 

 
e. On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, the 

Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries. 

 
f. According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures 

performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year 
on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate 
companies. 

 
10.  
 

a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public 
offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.  
 

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and 
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 

11.   
a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed 

or reported during the year. 
 

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed 
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government, during the year. 
 

c. We have not taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year, while determining the nature, timing and extent of our 
audit procedures in absence of the details of whistle blower complaints by the 
company. 

 
12.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the 

Order is not applicable. 
 
 
 

13.  In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties 
and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial 
Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards subject to para 14 of 
basis for qualified opinion of the independent auditor’s report. 
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14.  The company has not provided internal audit report for the year and as such we are not 
able to give opinion on the internal audit system. 

 
15. In our opinion during the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 

transactions with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence 
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

16.  
a.  In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of 

the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and 
(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

b.  In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in 
the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly 
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

17.  The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit 
and the immediately preceding financial year. 

 
18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year. 

 
19.  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial 

assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the  
Financial Statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management 
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not 
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state 
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due. 

 
20.  

a.   In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
is unspent amount to the tune of Rs. 0.09 lakhs in respect of other than ongoing 
projects and the company has not transferred unspent amount to a Fund specified 
in schedule VII to the companies act within a period of six months of the expiry of 
the financial year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 
135 of the Act. 
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b. The company does not have any ongoing project and hence reporting under clause 
3(xx)(b) of the order are not applicable. 

 
21. The requirement of clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of standalone 

financial statements. 
 
 
 

    For, S. D. Mehta & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 137193W) 
 
 

Date: 2nd August, 2025 
Place: Ahmedabad 

Shaishav D Mehta 
           Partner 

M.No.: 032891 
UDIN : 25157873BMHVHB9989 
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Annexure-B to Independent Auditors’ Report 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)  
  
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Secur Credentials 
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls  
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
Auditors’ Responsibility  
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under 
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial 
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 
material respects.  
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting.  

103



 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of  
Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of  Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the  Financial 
Statements.  
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting  

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion  
 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial 
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  
 

    For, S. D. Mehta & Co. 
 Chartered Accountants 

(Registration No. 137193W) 
 
 

Date: 2nd August, 2025 
Place: Ahmedabad 

Shaishav D Mehta 
           Partner 

M.No.: 032891 
UDIN : 25157873BMHVHB9989 
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